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To achieve world-wide recognition as an
excellent Companies Registry giving the
community a quality service.
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To provide our customers with efficient, cost-effective and
quality services and Facilities to incorporate companies
and to register and inspect company documents.

To continuously review and enhance our services and
fFacilities and undertake effective enforcement, taking
account of the best modern technology available.

To motivate our staff to achieve organisational objectives
by adopting appropriate human resource management
strategies.
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To care For and respect our customers by listening

to them and taking into account their needs and
expectations when shaping the types and quality of
service which we deliver.

To care for and respect our colleagues as a quality
service and effective enforcement can be delivered
and undertaken only through dedicated people of high
calibre working together as a team.

To change for the better by remaining receptive to new
ideas, technologies and work practices so as to enhance
the level and quality of our services and facilities.
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The enactment of the new
Companies Ordinance
reinforces Hong Kong's
position as a world-class
place to do business.
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| have great pleasure in presenting the Companies Registry's Annual
Report for 2011-12.

Business Performance

Our business reflected the overall sentiment of the Hong Kong
economy during the past year. It got off to a strong start during the
four months up to July 2011, on the back of robust economic growth.
However, our turnover slowed down during the rest of the year, in
line with the more cautious mood that prevailed about the prospects
for the global and regional economuy.

Despite this, we still managed to achieve a profit level of HK$216.6
million, as well as a return of 54.9 per cent on our average net
fixed assets employed. Our financial reserve remained strong, and
this enabled us to plough ahead with all the legislative and service
enhancement programmes we had planned.

Given the continued uncertainties in the global economy and the
implications on Hong Kong's economic growth, we shall adopt a
conservative approach in the financial planning and management of
the Registry's operations in the coming years in order to cater for
any adverse impact on the Registry's financial performance arising
from any slowdown in the economuy.

The Year's Highlights

During the course of the year, the Registry:

* Handled the incorporation of 139,366 new companies;

* Processed 3,254,565 searches of document image records via
our Cyber Search Centre;

* Received 2,133,701 documents for registration and 33,579 charge
documents;

* Dealt with 194,250 searches of company particulars and 316,618
searches of the Directors' Index;

* Launched new electronic filing services for the more commonly
filed statutory returns and for the registration of agents; and

* Exceeded all the 16 performance targets by wide margins.

~° | 00 Annual Report 2011-12
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The popularity of our online services continued to grow during the
year. Our website received almost 2 million visits in 2011-12, and
more than 99 per cent of the company searches were conducted
online. As of 31 March 2012, the Registry’s electronic news
subscription service had 5,834 subscribers, and the Annual Return
e-Alert service had 22,633 subscribers.

Meanuwhile, our 1823 Call Centre and Enquiry Hotline answered more
than 115,000 calls within 2011-12.

Major Achievements

A major milestone of the Companies Ordinance rewrite exercise
is the completion of the scrutiny of the Companies Bill by the Bills
Committee of the Legislative Council. Since the introduction of the
Companies Bill into the legislature on 26 January 2011, there was
significant progress in the scrutiny of the Bill by the Bills Committee
during the year and the Registry spared no effort in providing
support for the legislative progress. The passage of the Companies
Bill on 12 July marked the culmination of more than six years'
work, and it was made possible only by the sustained and tireless
efforts of the Chairman and Members of the Bills Committee of
the Legislative Council, the Companies Bill Team and colleagues of
the Registry.

To enhance Hong Kong's competitiveness as a corporate domicile,
the Financial Secretary in his speech for the 2012-13 Budget
proposed the abolition of the levy on capital duty on local companies
in order to encourage investors to establish companies here and help
existing companies to raise capital and expand their business. The
legislative amendments for the proposal were made on 16 March
2012 and commenced operation on 1)une 2012.

Meanuwhile, the quality, efficiency and convenience of our e-Registry
and the one-stop company incorporation and business registration
service received widespread commendation and won the Best Public
Service Application (Transformation) Gold Award in the Hong Kong
ICT Awards 2012. The Registry was awarded the Silver Prize of
the Departmental Service Enhancement Award (Small Department
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Category) in the Civil Service Outstanding Service Award Scheme
2011 and the 2012 Best SME's Partner Award from the Hong Kong
Chamber of Small and Medium Business. Our 2010-11 Annual Report
also received the Honors Award in the Mercury Awards.

Closer Ties with the Business Sector

During the year, we continued to strengthen our ties with customers
and stakeholders in various sectors of the local business community
by paying visits to them, sponsoring conferences or symposiums
and participating in trade exhibitions. We took these opportunities
to introduce and explain the Registry's new electronic services and
issues raised by the new Companies Ordinance.

Cooperation Spanning the Globe

We also broadened the scope and depth of our links with registries
in the Mainland and overseas by participating in major international
conferences on corporate requlation, sending delegations to visit
other registries, and receiving their officials in Hong Kong.

In October 2011, we signed memoranda of understanding with the
Beijing Administration for Industry and Commerce and the Ningbo
Administration for Industry and Commerce. The agreements helped
to enhance communication and cooperation between the Registry
and our counterparts in Beijing and Ningbo.

Preparing for a New Era

The new Companies Ordinance, one of the longest pieces of
legislation ever enacted in Hong Kong and consisting of more than
900 sections, 11 Schedules and near 700 consequential amendments
to the existing law, has been an enormously challenging project
for all involved. Since the introduction of the Companies Bill into
the Legislative Council on 26 January 2011, the Bills Committee
considered over 200 papers and submissions in 44 meetings lasting
a total of over 120 hours, with many of the meetings lasting more
than four hours.

| 00 Annual Report 2011-12
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The scrutiny process has stimulated detailed consideration and
debates of various issues. Some of the issues drew much attention
of the relevant stakeholders. These include, for example, the
“headcount test” for approving a scheme of arrangement; the
offences relating to the contents of auditor’s report; the appropriate
criteria and eligibility for simplified reporting for Hong Kong
companies and the appropriateness of lowering the threshold for
prosecuting officers of companies who fail to comply with their
statutory obligations. All those involved in the scrutiny process
have worked hard to resolve these and other concerns, generating
more than 850 Committee Stage Amendments to the Bill to balance
diverse interests.

The second reading of the Bill resumed in the Legislative Council on
3 July 2012. To the relief of all involved in the exercise, the Bill was
passed on 12 July 2012 after extensive deliberations and discussions
of clauses of the Bill over a period of 8 days.

The completion of this project and the enactment of the new
Companies Ordinance, which is expected to come into operation
after enactment of all the necessary subsidiary legislation, ensures
that the legal infrastructure for company law in Hong Kong remains
on a par with the world's major international and financial centres,
and reinforces Hong Kong's position as a world-class place to
do business.

With the imminent changes ahead, the Registry is preparing to
take up new roles and functions. Its information system is being
overhauled, new policies and procedures are being developed,
and preparations are underway to launch extensive publicity and
educational programmes to promote understanding of the new
legislation. The year ahead will be challenging and busy, but no
effort will be spared to ensure that the subsidiary legislation is
enacted and that the transition to the new regime will be smooth
and easy for all concerned.
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A Word of Thanks

In a year that has seen tremendous challenges and achievements
for the Registry, | am very grateful for the great efforts, valuable
advice and contributions of the Chairman and Members of the
Bills Committee of the Legislative Council formed to consider the
Companies Bill, who have all worked exceedingly hard to complete
the scrutiny process within this legislative term.

| am also indebted to members of the Standing Committee on
Company Law Reform, our four dedicated advisory groups,
the Joint Working Group between the Government and the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and all those
who responded to our consultations relating to the rewrite exercise
for their valuable inputs and active participation.

Last but not the least, | would like to put on record my heartfelt
thanks to all of my colleagues for their hard work, professionalism
and commitment, with particular indebtedness to the members of
the Companies Bill Team, comprising colleagues from the Financial
Services and the Treasury Bureau and the Registry.

We will continue to work tirelessly for a new chapter in Hong Kong's
corporate regulation.

Sﬂ‘v.p-‘_\

Ms Ada LL Chung, JP

Registrar of Companies and
General Manager, Companies Registry Trading Fund
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Achievements and Highlights 2011-12

Financial Performance

The Companies Registry's strong business performance during the
first four months of 2011-12 tapered off after August 2011, owing to
fluctuations and uncertainties in the local and global economies. Despite
this, its overall financial results for the year were very satisfactory.

201112 2010-1 o/(0)

00000 HK$'000 | 0ODOO0 HK$'000  Increase/(Decrease)

000 Turnover 483,191 476,052 1.5%
00000 Profit after tax 216,586 226,811 (4.5%)
000 Net assets 871,932 882,157 (1.2%)
0000000 Cashinhand and fixed deposits 675,132 658,643 2.5%
oooooooooog® 54.9% 59.4% (4.5) 00 basis points

Rate of return on average net fixed assets

/

o 000000000000000000@MOD0O00000000D0) 0000000000000

Note  The percentage rate of return on average net fixed assets is calculated by dividing the amount of

profit after tax (excluding interest income and interest expenses) by the average net fixed assets. |:| |:| |:| |:|

ooooooooooooboooooooon
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ooooooooooooooolecoOn
oooo0ooOoooOoooOooooso

Financial Performance
00O0DO0O0DoDooooD Forthe year ended 31 March

0oooooO HKS million

500 62%

59%

450 —

400 53%

S

50%
350 47%

300 44%
41%
250 38%
35%
32%

29%

200

Saln 150

Turnover
ooooo 100
Profit after Tax
00ooooooooo 50

Rate of return on average
net fixed assets

26%
23%
20%

Key workload statistics for 2011-12 are shown in Appendix A.

The Registry exceeded all of its 16 performance targets for 2011-12.
Details of these are set out in Appendix B.
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Ooooooo  Statistics

at a Glance

3,254,565

ooooOoOO0O0O0O000000000O0
00 3,254,5650 U

3,254,565 searches of document image
records were made via the Cyber Search
Centre.

139,366

13936600 000000 - 00001161400
oodsiwtooooooooon

139,366 new companies were incorporated — an average of
11,614 per month. Approximately 81 per cent of them were
one-member companies.

27,158

271580 0000000000 ODOO
02010000000

27,158 defunct companies were struck
off under section 291 of the Companies
Ordinance.

FS6/,030

ooooooOoooooobooleero3ondnn
o000 - 0000163919000

The Registry's website was visited
1,967,030 times during 2011-12 - an
average of 163,919 visits per month.

968,665

oooooooooooooo
ooo9eseesu 0 OOOOOOOO

2,133,701

ooooooooOOO0oO0O21337010 -
oooooooser40 O

2,133,701 documents were received for
registration — an average of 8,674 per
working day.

968,665 local companies were on the
public register, as of 31 March 2012.

99%

o099l oooooboooooooo

More than 99 per cent of company
searches were made online.

©

1,565

15650 0000000000

28,623

2862300 00000000O0OOCOO
OOooOooOooOoo291AA0 00000

1,565 companies were dissolved by
28,623 defunct solvent private companies liquidation.
were deregistered under section 291AA of

the Companies Ordinance.

316,618

OooooOooO0oons1e61800

316,618 searches of the Directors' Index
were made.

33,579

oo0oooboooooooDbs3ss790 —
oo0oooboo0owyooooooooo
gooooooo

194,250

O000ooO0o0oooOi1e425000

194,250 searches of company particulars
were made.

33,579 charge documents were received
- an average of 137 per working day.
Around two-thirds of them related to
landed properties.

5,834/22,633

pgobooooooooooooooouooo
dod0o0o000oOoOoOoOoOoOoOooooo
gooss4aiooooooooooo
gooooooooooooooooooo
Ooo0226330000

As of 31 March 2012, the Registry’s electronic
news subscription service, which provides
regular information updates on its services
and initiatives, had 5,834 subscribers.
Meanwhile, the Annual Return e-Alert service,
which issues email reminders for the filing of
annual returns, had 22,633 subscribers.

59,871

182300 00000DbO000bOO
= 0000000b00OO59871
O- 0000498900

The 1823 Call Centre
received 59,871 enquiries
on the Registry's services
- an average of 4,989

per month.

55,621

poooooooOoOObObOOOoO00d
55,6210 — 0000463500

average of 4,635 per month.

P

The Enquiry Hotline took 55,621 calls — an
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D000 The Year's Highlights
0000000 April 2011

gooooOO0o0o0o0ooooOoOoOoooooooOOoooooo
godoooooooobooocoooooooood
Deputations are invited to provide their views on the
Companies Bill to the Legislative Council’s Bills Committee in
April 2011 and March 2012.

0000000 May 2011

goooo00o0OoooOoOOOoO0oOoozoil0O0O0OO0OOOO
gooooo

The Companies Registry gives a presentation on its latest
developments at the Annual Corporate and Regulatory
Update 2011.

ooooobooo0oobooo0ooboOoboOob0oobooo0oon

201100

The Registrar of Companies and other officers from the
Companies Registry attend the Corporate Registers Forum
2011 in Singapore.

0000000 June 2011

go000oO0oooooOOoOooOoooooooo
A delegation from the Zhejiang Administration for Industry
and Commerce visits the Companies Registry.

0000000 July 201

goobooboooooooooooogolyooooon
ooo0oooooooooo

The Registrar of Companies gives a presentation on the
Electronic Incorporation Service at the 17th meeting of the
Business Facilitation Advisory Committee.

0000000 August 2011

oooboOooOoooooOoboUoobOoboOooooboOoo
ooobooooooon

The Registrar of Companies makes a presentation on the
Companies Bill at a seminar organised by the Democratic
Alliance for the Betterment and Progress of Hong Kong.

S - . -

ooooOoooOoooOoooooo
The Secretary for the Civil Service visits the Companies
Registru.



O000000 September 2011

ooooooOobooooOooOoooOooOobOoOooOooOoon
oooooooo

A presentation entitled Electronic Incorporation Service
and Registration of Company Names is given at a seminar
organised by the Federation of Hong Kong Industries.

oooooboOobzoi0ooooobooboooooboon

00ooOo@oooo)yooo

The Companies Registry wins the Silver Prize in the
Departmental Service Enhancement Award (Small Department
Category) under the Civil Service Outstanding Service Award
Scheme 2011.

goooobooboOoooooOooooboOobOooOooboOooOoo
ooooobooooooobooo

Mrs Karen Ho, the Deputy Principal Solicitor attends the
OECD's Peer Review Group Meeting on Tax Transparency and
Exchange of Information in Paris.

goooooooooooo
goooooooooooo
ooo

Officers of the Companies
Registry and the Financial
Services and the Treasury
Bureau visit the Market
Supervision Administration
of Shenzhen Municipality.

0000000 October 2011

¥

oodoboOoboOoooOooOooooboOoboOoOoboOoboOooboon

ooooo

The Registrar of Companies leads a delegation to the 15th
Beijing Hong Kong Economic Cooperation Symposium in
Beijing.

{‘ ‘.-.-'-..-' et

ooboooooooo0ooooooooooooooo

The Registrar of Companies signs a Cooperation Agreement
with the Beijing Administration for Industry and Commerce.
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ooo0ooooooooooooooo
The Registrar of Companies of Mauritius visits the Companies
Registru.

goooo0o0o0o0oooooOOoOo0oOoooooOOooo
The Registrar of Companies signs a Cooperation Agreement

with the Ningbo Administration for Industry and Commerce.
goo0opooooooooo

oooboOooOooooobooo

00000000 November 2011 ooo

The Companies Registry
announces the launch of
the Registration of Agents
and e-Monitor services.

godoodooOo0ooOooooooOobooOobooooOoOoo
A delegation led by the Minister for Commerce and
Employment, States of Guernsey, visits the Companies
Registry.

J00000000 December 2011

oooooooooooo
ooooz20110000
ooooooooooo
The Companies Registry
makes a presentation on
e-Incorporation at the
World SME Expo 2011.

oo000000ooOoOoOO0O0OOoOoOooOoOooOoOOoOoOoOon
A delegation from the Anhui and Shandong Administration
for Industry and Commerce visits the Companies Registry.




O000000 February 2012

0000000000000 DO0000DODOoO0OODoDOO
The Companies Registry launches a new one-stop service for
Notifications of Changes of Business Addresses.

goooooooo
ooooooooo
goo

The Companies
Registry introduces
electronic filing
services for a number
of specified forms.

oooooooz2012000000000000

The Companies Registry wins the 2012 Best SME's Partner
Award.

ooooo0o0obooooOoOoO0OOO0bOOoOOO0O0O0On

201200
Officers from the Companies Registry attend the Corporate
Registers Forum 2012 in DeIhi, India. oo0o0000oooooOoOOoOoOooooooon

The Companies Registry is awarded the Gold Award for
Volunteer Service in 2011

0000000 March 2012

" HONG KONG ICT Awnnns‘"
) 2012 FHRMEEmAEE O ;

Awards Presentation Cerermony 91 6 W 8 2012.04.01
T e s L HER TAARETEEREE
BE1arEAS | 44N Mg

gooooooooo
gooooooooo
ooopooooooo
gooooooooo
goooo

The Departmental
Secretary and three
caring ambassadors
of the Companies
Registry receive the
Caring Organisation
2008-2012 logo on
behalf of the Registru.

oooooboOooooboOooOooooboOobouooboooo

gz0l20000000000000000O0COOO0O
(0ooo)Doooo

The One-stop Electronic Service for Company Incorporation
and Business Registration is awarded the Best Public Service
Application (Transformation) Gold Award in the Hong Kong
ICT Awards 2012.
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Financial Highlights

Objectives and Outcomes

The Companies Registry was established as a trading fund by
resolution of the Legislative Council on 1 August 1993. The Trading
Funds Ordinance (Cap. 430) requires it to operate in accordance with
commercial principles and on a self-financing basis.

Furthermore, its aims are to:

* Meet all the expenses it incurs in providing services out of its
income; and

* RAchieve a reasonable return (as determined by the Financial
Secretary and set at 8.3 per cent for 2011-12) on the average net
fixed assets it employs.

ooooogo Key Financial Information

goooon
Three-Year Summary

2009-10 2010-1 2011-12
000000 HKS million
aoo 391.5 476.1 483.2
Turnover
o000 230.2 21.4 2399
Operating costs
ooooo 1413 226.8 216.6
Profit after tax
OO0 /00000000 141.3 226.8 216.6
Dividends paid / payable to the Government
oooooooooon 35.3% 59.4% 54.9%
Rate of return on average net fixed assets /

b | 00 Annual Report 2011-12
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gooooo
Turnover and Profit
0DO0O0D0DO0O0D0DOO0OD For the year ended 31 March
000000 HKS million
500 4761 | 62%
59%
450 .
3915 53%
400 59770
50%
350 47%
300 44%
41%
250 38%
200 3%
32%
- 150 29%
Turnover 26%
nDoooo 100 ;
Profit after Tax 23%
afafa)afa)afalalsfals! 50 20%
Rate of return on average
net fixed assets




ogg
Turnover

47% 5.3%

1.6% 2.5%
4.3% \ \
0 —\ 3.4% _\
12.2% ‘\‘ 12.7% \\‘
51.9%

2010 - 201 2011 - 2012

253% 268%

- 0000000 Incorporation fees - 0000000 Charges registration fees
00000000 Annual registration fees - 000000000 Fees for administration and collection services
B coooooo searchand copying fees I cooo otherfees

Operating Costs

6.1% 7.6%

)

22.2% 23.5%

2010 - 20M 2011 - 2012

N 71.7% . 68.9%

B Ccooo o Stoff costs
0OD0O Operating expenses

- 00000 Depreciation and amortisation

b | 00 Annual Report 2011-12



xR ‘ 0oooo Companies Registry

ogoooo
0000000000000000000
000000000000000000c¢O
00000000000000000000
0000000000000

oood
oooooOoOoOoOooooboooooooo
oooooooOooOoOOoOoOoOooOoOoooao
oooo0o0ooooooooooooobooon
oooooOoOoOoOooooboooooooo
ooo0o0oO0OO0OOoOoOoOoOooooooooa
00000000000 0000D0407,6100
ooooossd4wboooooooooon
ooO00oo40832000000000000
00000054.9%0

oooo0o0ooooooooooooobooon
oooooOoOoOoOooooboooooooo
ooo0o0oO0OO0OOoOoOoOoOooooooooa
oooo0o0ooooooooooooobooon
oooooooooOooooOoooooao
ooo0o0oO0OO0OOoOoOoOoOooooooooa
6075100 0000000000000 0OO
0 2.5%0

oooooOoOoOoOooooboooooooo
ooo0o0oO0OO0OOoOoOoOoOooooooooa
oooo0o0ooooooooooooobooon
oooooo

Annual Accounts

The Annual Accounts for 2011-12, which have been prepared in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, are
contained in Appendix C, together with the Report of the Director
of Audit. These will be tabled before the Legislative Council, as
required by the Trading Funds Ordinance.

Financial Performance

The year under review began on a high note, with the Registry
recording year-on-year growth in its revenues for the months from
April to July 2011. However, the worsening sovereign debt crisis in
the Eurozone, combined with growing concerns about the slow pace
of the global economic recovery, adversely affected the Hong Kong
business environment as the year continued, resulting in a decline
in the Registry’s revenue. Even so, it was still able to achieve a
turnover of $483.2 million and a return of 54.9 per cent on fixed
assets employed for the full year, compared with $476.1 million and
59.4 per cent for 2010-11.

The Registry’s operations are financed by the income generated
by its services. It does not require any loan financing. Most of
the Registry's liabilities during the year under review consisted of
the monetised value of its staff's untaken leave, prepayments by
registered users of the Cyber Search Centre (CSC) and e-Registry,
taxation and accrued expenses. As of 31 March 2012, the Registry
had a total of $675.1 million cash in hand and cash deposited with
banks and the Exchange Fund. This was 2.5 per cent more than on
the same date 12 months earlier.

The Registry's healthy financial reserves allowed it to push ahead
with its service enhancement programmes and the updating of its
registration and regulatory systems in preparation for the increased
responsibilities which will Fall on its shoulders when the new
Companies Ordinance is implemented.
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Incorporation

Business Operations

Incorporation and Dissolution of Companies

A total of 139,366 companies - an average of around 11,614 per
month - were incorporated in 2011-12. That was a decrease of
3.1 per cent on the figure for 2010-11. About 81 per cent of the new
companies were one-member companies.
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During the same period, 27,158 defunct companies were struck off
under section 291 of the Companies Ordinance; 28,623 defunct,
solvent private companies were deregistered under section 291AA
of the Companies Ordinance; and 988 companies were dissolved by
liquidation.
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Registration of Documents

The Registry received 2,133,701 documents - an average of 8,674
every working day - for registration during 2011-12, an increase of 9.4
per cent on the previous year's figure.

pooooooooo
gooo

Average number of documents
received each working day

The documents covered many different aspects of a company’s
operations. They included, for example, memoranda and articles of
association, notifications of appointments and changes of company
secretaries and directors, changes of registered office addresses,
returns on allotments and annual returns.
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Public Searches
The Registry’'s CSC (wwuw.icris.cr.gov.hk) allows members of the
public to conduct online searches for company information 24

hours a day, 365 days a year. These include current particulars
of companies and digitised images of documents filed with the
Registry. The results can be viewed online or downloaded. In
addition, certified copies of documents and other records may
be ordered via the CSC and delivered by post or courier, or else
collected in person from the Registry's Public Search Centre. Over
99 per cent of company searches are now conducted online via the
easily accessible and user-friendly CSC.

Companies and individuals may register as CSC online users upon
payment of a small annual fee. In return, they enjoy lower fees for
searching image records, plus the convenience of having search fees
deducted from their prepayment accounts. Unregistered online users
may pay search fees online, using a credit card or PPS by Internet.
There were more than 2,000 registered online users during the past
two years.

A total of 3,254,565 e-searches of document image records were
made during 2011-12, an increase of 2.4 per cent on the previous 12
months. The numbers of searches of company particulars and the
Directors’ Index were 194,250 and 316,618, respectively, 2.4 per
cent and 7.3 per cent up on the 2010-11 figures.

odooooooboooooboooooond
Number of searches of document image records during 2011-12
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Registration of Charges

A total of 33,579 company charges, an average of 137 per working
day, were received for registration during 2011-12, 21.1 per cent
fewer than in 2010-11. About two-thirds of the charges related to
landed property.

T
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Average number of charges
received each working day

Outlook for the Coming Year

The continued uncertainties in the global economy and the
implications on Hong Kong's economic growth incline the Registry
to adopt a conservative approach when forecasting the revenues
from its major activities in the coming years. Since the Registry
derives most of its revenues from the activities of companies -
especially company incorporations - it seems inevitable that the
downbeat sentiment will cast a shadow over its business during
2012-13. After a sharp increase in the past two years, the number
of new incorporations is expected to return to its previous level of
around 100,000 in 2012-13, a drop of about 25 per cent compared
with 2011-12. Similarly, the numbers of charges registered and
company searches are likely to decline by about 3 to 5 per cent
and the number of deregistrations will rise by about 4 per cent in
2012-13. Nevertheless, given the number of companies already on
the register, the income from annual registration fees from annual
returns is still expected to grow by 9 per cent. That would offset the
expected drop in revenues from company incorporations. Following
the anticipated adjustment in 2012-13, the Registry’s business is
expected to resume moderate growth in the following years, while it
will continue to achieve its target rate of return.
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In view of the present fluctuations, the Registry will need to
maintain an adequate reserve to cater for any unexpected adverse
economic conditions and to finance its development projects,
particularly the following:

* Supporting the Government in the preparation of subsidiary
legislation for the new Companies Ordinance;

* Preparing for the Registry's new roles and functions under the
new Companies Ordinance;

* Full implementation of the e-Filing service for specified forms,
including annual returns;

* System enhancements to facilitate the implementation of the
new Companies Ordinance;

* Publicising and promoting the new Companies Ordinance to
Facilitate its smooth implementation;

* Establishment of a hot site for the Registry’s information system,
to minimise the risk of service disruption due to breakdown of
computer systems; and

* An overall review of the Integrated Companies Registry
Information System for the Registry’s longer-term development.
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The Companies Registry has always been fully committed to
providing customers with efficient, cost-effective and high-quality
services and facilities. These encompass the incorporation and
registration of companies and the registration of documents, as
well as the inspection of company information and image records of
documents it registers and maintains.

The Registry understands that a convenient and efficient system
for company registration and the inspection of information is
indispensable to Hong Kong as a leading international business
and financial centre. Over the years, it has continuously expanded
and improved the quality of its services and streamlined the
work processes involved. At the same time, it has developed the
Integrated Companies Registry Information System (ICRIS) to replace
its former fragmented operating systems.

The First phase of the new system introduced electronic search
services in 2005, whereas the second phase has encompassed the
gradual introduction of electronic incorporation (e-Incorporation) and
electronic filing (e-Filing) services, beginning in January 2011, ICRIS
has also enabled the Registry to handle its rapidly growing workload
efficiently and economically. In addition, it has transformed the
Registry’s core business activities and put Hong Kong's company
registration procedures on a par with those in comparable
jurisdictions, such as the United Kingdom and Singapore.

The implementation of the new Companies Ordinance means the
Registry will assume a number of new roles and functions. These
will require a number of changes to its existing working procedures.
Having assessed their implications, the Registry launched a
programme in July 2011 to enhance its existing computer systems
to accommodate the changes, while simultaneously continuing
to develop new e-Filing services. It has since been working Ffull
steam ahead to ensure that everything will be ready before the
implementation of the new Ordinance.
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ICRIS Phase | - the Cyber Search Centre (CSC) (wwuw.icris.cr.gov.hk)
was implemented in February 2005 to provide the public with a

round-the-clock platform for online searches of company information.
All the documents received by the Registry are immediately
converted into digitised images that are routed to its processing
sections for data entry, system verification and online scrutiny by
its staff. These documents are almost instantly available for the
public’s inspection once they have been registered.

The online search services have received very positive feedback
from users, and they have almost completely superseded traditional
onsite search services. Today, more than 99 per cent of all the
searches made for the latest information of about a million live
registered companies in Hong Kong are conducted online via the
CSC. A Helpdesk is also available at all times to assist customers
who experience any difficulties in using the services.
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The development of ICRIS Phase Il began in June 2009. Stage 1
saw the inauguration of the e-Registry (www.eregistry.gov.hk) in
January 2011. This round-the-clock internet portal and one-stop

platform provides convenient, user-friendly and integrated electronic
company registration services. User registration is free of charge,
and registered users can also open deposit accounts for the payment
of relevant fees. It had more than 11,000 active registered user
accounts, as of 31 March 2012.
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January 2008 and March 2011 were two significant milestones
for company incorporation in Hong Kong. Before January 2008, it
took six working days to incorporate a company. Even after the
procedure was streamlined at that time, it still required four working
days and could only be done during normal office hours. However,
the launch of the e-Incorporation service in March 2011 has meant
members of the public can now incorporate a company online via the
e-Reqistry at any time and from anywhere.

More than 90 per cent of all online company incorporations are now
processed and completed within one hour, and particulars of new
companies are readily available for inspection online at the CSC.

To facilitate the establishment of new businesses, the new electronic
service also incorporates a one-stop online company incorporation
and business registration service to allow applicants to incorporate @
company and apply for business registration in one step. Electronic
certificates of incorporation and business registration certificates are
issued together to successful applicants. Relevant information are then
transmitted to the Business Registration Office at the Inland Revenue
Department (IRD), so that the business register can be updated.

Furthermore, the e-Registry provides model Memoranda and Articles
of Association for use by applicants.
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The Companies Registry is awarded the Hong Kong

ICT Awards 2012: Best Public Service Application
(Transformation) Gold Award

In February 2012, the one-stop service was further extended to
cover cases in which a change of the registered office address
constitutes a change of the business address. Since then, customers
need only file a notification of the change with the Registry, and
details will be automatically transmitted to the IRD, so that the
business address can be updated in the business register.

This streamlining of company incorporation procedures and the
absence of a minimum capital requirement helped Hong Kong to
leap from eighteenth to sixth position out of 183 economies in the
“Starting a Business” indicator in the World Bank's Doing Business
Report 2011. The introduction of the e-Incorporation and one-stop
service further advanced Hong Kong's global position from sixth to
fifth place in the 2012 Report.

The one-stop e-Incorporation service has been warmly welcomed by
small and medium-sized enterprises (SME). More than 90 per cent of
companies incorporated electronically are one-member companies,
and about 95 per cent are SMEs with an authorised share capital of
$10,000 or less.

In recognition of its achievements in delivering public services via
the one-stop e-Incorporation service, the Registry was acwarded
the Hong Kong ICT Awards 2012; Best Public Service Application
(Transformation) Gold Award. Furthermore, the one-stop service
has enabled the Registry to improve its overall service quality and
operational efficiency, which resulted in its winning a Silver Prize in
the Departmental Service Enhancement Award (Small Department
Category) of the Civil Service Outstanding Service Award
Scheme 2011.

Gold Award
£

HONG KONG

ICT AWARDS

2012 F8EME
FALRR 8
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The Companies Registry receives the Silver Prize in the Departmental

Service Enhancement Award (Small Department Category) of the
Civil Service Outstanding Service Award Scheme 2011
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As part of Stage 2 of ICRIS Phase Il, the Registry developed other
value-added services during 2011-12.

The agent registration service rolled out in October 2011 allows
company and individual users of the e-Registry to appoint agents
registered with the Registry for the purpose of electronic Ffiling.
Once appointed, the registered agent may submit online notifications
of changes of the names, directors and secretaries and their
particulars, as well as registered office addresses of local companies.
A list of registered agents is available at the e-Registry for
public inspection.

In December 2011, the Registry launched the e-Monitor service. This
immediately sends an email notification to subscribers whenever a
document concerning companies they have selected is registered in
the public records. Customers may also subscribe to the “e-Monitor
(Self-Monitor)” service to get updates about the Ffiling position of
their own companies, or the “e-Monitor (Other Companies)” service
to receive notifications about any changes of information concerning
companies they are interested in, such as their customers, business
partners or suppliers.

The first phase of the e-Filing service was launched in February
2012. It covers four commonly Ffiled specified notification forms
concerning changes in directors and secretaries and their particulars,
as well as registered office addresses. Customers may submit
these electronic forms on-line or via a third-party software interface
function, either individually or in bulk. More e-Filing services,
including the filing of annual returns, are being rolled out during the
course of 2012,
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Companies Ordinance (Amendment of
Eighth Schedule) Order 2012

In his speech for the 2012-13 Budget, the Financial Secretary
proposed the abolition of the levy on capital duty on local companies.
This proposal is intended to enhance Hong Kong's competitiveness
as a corporate domicile by encouraging investors to establish
companies there, and help existing companies to raise capital and
expand their businesses.

The Companies Ordinance (Amendment of Eighth Schedule) Order
2012 was subsequently published in the Gazette on 16 March
2012. It amends Part | of the Eighth Schedule to the Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 32) so that no capital duty would be payable by
local companies with share capital on the following:

(@) The amount of the company's nominal share capital at the time
of its incorporation;

(b) Any increase in its nominal share capital following its
incorporation; and

() The amount of premium for an issue of shares at a premium.

These amendments apply to companies that lodge relevant
documentation for the above purposes with the Registrar of
Companies on or after 1 June 2012.

< | 00 Annual Report 2011-12



3 ‘ 0oooo Companies Registry

oodood

Strengthening Legal Infrastructure

Oooogooo

0d
oooo0o0oO0oOoOoooooooooooa
ooooooooooooboooooooon
O000@O0)§ooooooooooooo
oooooooooOoooooooooao
ooooooooooooooooooo
ooo

ooo0o0oO0oOoOoOoOoOoooooooooao
oooo0o0oO0oOoOoooooooooooa
ooooooooooooboooooooon
ooo0o0oO0oOoOoOoOoOoooooooooao
oooooooooOoooooooooao
ooooooooooooboooooooon
oooooooa

oooo0o0oO0oOoOoooooooooooa
ooooooooooooboooooooon
ooo0o0oO0oOoOoOoOoOoooooooooao
oooooooooOoooooooooao
ooooooooooooboooooooon
oooooooOooOooOooOoooooao
oooo0o0oO0oOoOoooooooooooa
oooooon

Rewriting the Companies Ordinance

The Background

The last time the Companies Ordinance was substantially reviewed
and amended was in 1984. Since then, the Government and the
Standing Committee on Company Law Reform (SCCLR) have been
reviewing the Ordinance on a regular basis in order to update
its content, with the aim of enhancing Hong Kong's corporate
governance regime and ensuring that it satisfies the changing needs
of the local business environment.

Past reviews of the Ordinance have resulted in a number of
recommendations about amending various sections, some of which
have been implemented. This piecemeal approach to amending the
Ordinance nevertheless has its limitations and it has been clear that
a comprehensive overhaul of the Ordinance is needed. Moreover,
many major common law jurisdictions have reformed their company
law during the past two decades, and rewriting the Ordinance would
offer an opportunity to make reference to such developments taking
place around the world.

With the support of Legislative Council Panel on Financial Affairs, a
comprehensive rewrite of the Ordinance began in mid-2006. It has
been undertaken by a dedicated Companies Bill Team consisting of
officers from the Financial Services and the Treasury Bureau and
the Companies Registry. Four advisory groups consisting of experts
in related fields and representatives of relevant professional and
regulatory bodies were also set up specifically to help formulate
proposals and recommendations concerning amendments to various
areas of company law.
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In its work, the Companies Bill Team also took into account the
views and recommendations of the SCCLR and a Joint Working Group
formed by the Government and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants that has closely scrutinised the accounting and
auditing provisions.

Following five rounds of public consultation and continuous
exchanges with stakeholders concerned over the years, the
Companies Bill was finalised and introduced into the Legislative
Council on 26 January 2011.

A Bills Committee was formed under the chairmanship of the
Honourable Paul Chan Mo-po, MH, )P, in February 2011 to scrutinise
the Bill. After 44 meetings lasting a total of more than 120 hours, the
Committee completed its clause-by-clause scrutiny of the Companies
Bill in June 2012. The Committee also considered over 850
Committee Stage Amendments, as well as near 700 consequential

amendments that will be required to the existing law. A list of the
members of the Bills Committee on Companies Bill is provided in
Appendix D.

| 00 Annual Report 2011-12

-~

00O000ODOOOOOO0O0O0

The Companies Bill is being scrutinised
by the Legislative Council




S ‘ 0oooo Companies Registry

oodood

Strengthening Legal Infrastructure

gooooooooooo
0000000000090000001100
00000000000000000000
00000000000000000000
00000000000000000000
00000000000000000000
00000000000000000000
0000000000000000000
O0D0ED

ooooooooooooboooooooon
ooo0o0oO0oOoOoOoOoOoooooooooao
oooo0o0oO0oOoOoooooooooooa
ooooooooooooboooooooon
oooooooOooOooOooOoooooao
ooo

oooooooooOoooooooooao
ooooooooooooooooooao
O00000OO0OO0O00@OOOoOono)ooo
oooooooooOoooooooooao
ooooooooooooboooooooon
ooo0o0oO0oOoOoOoOoOoooooooooao
ooo

Main Features of the new Companies Ordinance
Consisting of more than 900 sections and 11 schedules, the
new Companies Ordinance is intended to modernise the legal
framework for companies in Hong Kong by bringing it into line
with modern international standards, thereby increasing the
city's competitiveness as a major international business and
financial centre. The four main objectives of the new Ordinance are
to enhance corporate governance, ensure better requlation, facilitate
business, and modernise the law. The major initiatives introduced to
achieve these objectives are set out in Appendix E.

Rewriting the Companies Ordinance has involved making reference
to and benchmarking Hong Kong's existing legislation against
developments in company law in other comparable common
law jurisdictions, particularly the United Kingdom, Rustralia and
Singapore. The aim has been to ensure that Hong Kong's regime will
remain in line with international norms, and that it will be able to
benefit from precedent cases in other common law courts.

Moreover, the distinct needs and circumstances of the local business
community have been taken into account in the Companies Bill. One
example is that the approval of disinterested shareholders would
be required for certain transactions that involve the directors (or
their connected entities) of public companies and their subsidiaries.
This requirement is regarded as necessary for fostering shareholder
protection, given the large number of Family-controlled public
companies in Hong Kong.
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The so-called “headcount” test - in which a majority in number of
members present and voting is required for a resolution to approve
a takeover offer or general offer to buy back shares, including a
privatisation scheme - would be replaced by a new requirement
that the number of votes cast against a resolution to approve such
a scheme must not be more than 10 per cent of votes attached to all
disinterested shares. The new provision would also provide that a
dissenting member might be ordered to pay legal costs only if his or
her opposition to the scheme was deemed frivolous or vexatious.

To save compliance costs while maintaining an appropriate level of
transparency in a company'’s financial reports, new provisions have
been proposed to allow companies that meet specified size criteria
to prepare simplified financial statements and directors’ reports.
Larger private companies that do not meet the specified size criteria
would also be entitled to prepare simplified reports if their size does
not exceed a higher threshold, provided that members holding 75
per cent of the voting rights so resolve and no member objects.

The new Ordinance will be implemented after passing of all

subsidiary legislation.
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Standing Committee on
Company Law Reform

The Standing Committee on Company Law Reform (SCCLR) is a non-
statutory advisory body formed in 1984 to review the Companies
Ordinance on a regular basis, to ensure that it meets the changing
needs of the local business environment. The SCCLR is currently
chaired by Mr Godfrey Lam, SC, JP. It receives secretarial support
from the Registry. A list of SCCLR members for 2011-12 is given in
Appendix F. The SCCLR held one meeting during 2011-12, and it will
publish its 28th Annual Report in the latter half of 2012.

Compliance and Enforcement

The Registrar of Companies strives to maintain the integrity of the
Companies Register. It is therefore of the utmost importance that
companies incorporated or registered in Hong Kong comply with
their obligations under the relevant provisions of the Companies
Ordinance and in a timely manner. The Registry ensures that this is
done by prosecuting or taking other appropriate measures in cases

of non-compliance.
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During the financial year 2011-12, 88 per cent of local companies
complied with the requirement to file annual returns, whereas 94
per cent of non-Hong Kong companies did so. Both figures are
similar to those of the previous year.

The Registry completed a special exercise that involved sending
reminders to companies limited by guarantee that were late in
filing their annual returns and accounts. About 45 per cent of those
companies filed their outstanding annual returns after receiving the
reminder, whereas 52 per cent of them Ffailed to remedy the default,
and action was taken to strike them off the register.

Most of the prosecutions undertaken by the Registry were legal
actions against companies that failed to file annual returns or other
company documents. However, the Registry also emphasises
enforcement efforts in other areas. During the past year, the
Registry instituted proceedings against companies and their officers
for offences such as failure to hold annual general meetings, failure
to comply with the Registrar’s directions to change names, providing
false information in applications for deregistration, and carrying
on business in the name of a limited company that has not been
duly incorporated. The Registry cooperated with other requlators
whenever necessary.
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Corporate Governance Policy

As Hong Kong's corporate requlator, the Companies Registry
acknowledges the great importance of good governance. Besides
the critical role this plays in the efficiency and effectiveness of the
Registry's operations, it underpins the public's confidence and trust
in the Registry’s capability and integrity, as well as the level of
satisfaction of its employees.

The Registry has developed the following Corporate Governance
Framework and promulgated its Corporate Governance Policy
Statement in May 2012 to enable it to uphold the highest standards
in this respect.

Companies Registry Corporate Governance Framework
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Companies Registry's Organisation Chart
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Board and Committees

AEEE
Integrity Management
Committee

This structure ensures that the Registry's statutory roles, functions
and services to the public are delivered properly. The roles and
responsibilities of all its levels of management and staff are well
defined, and every staff member is Familiar with them.

The Management Board

The Registry's Management Board is headed by the Registrar of
Companies and consists of all its directorate officers. It is responsible
for setting strategic directions and managing the Registry’s business
affairs, with the aim of ensuring the appropriate implementation
of the Government's policies and objectives and realising the
Registry’s vision and mission. The Board meets monthly (or
more frequently if necessary) to discuss, review and monitor the
Registry’'s major initiatives and activities, both those in progress or
in the pipeline, to ensure that they are being effectively planned
and executed, and that they comply with relevant regulations
and established procedures. The Board also has four committees
covering the specific areas of integrity, investment strategies,
development and departmental establishment. These have been
set up to enhance efficiency and ensure proper management and
oversight of the Registry’'s conduct. The committees also make
recommendations to the Board concerning the continuous monitoring
and enhancement of good corporate governance practices.

RERKERE BEREEEZEE
Investment Strategy
Committee

Development
Steering Committee

EEEEE
Management
Board

£E® BAEHEEE
Departmental
Establishment Committee
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Corporate and Business Plan

The Registry prepares annual Corporate and Business Plan setting
out its short and longer-term strategies for achieving its business
and policy objectives. These are subject to approval by the
Secretary for Financial Services and the Treasury. Once approved,
the Plan serves as benchmarks for evaluating the Registry’s
performance and for formulating its development and work plans for
the following five years.

Transparent and Timely Reporting
Systems

The Board has established effective and efficient budgetary and
financial management systems to ensure that it properly deploys
the Registry’s resources to achieve its vision. The Registry provides
stakeholders and the general public with clear and adequate
information about its Trading Fund's financial and operating results
to enable them to understand fully the details of its business, its
current status and how it is being developed for the future.

The Registry’s annual accounts are prepared in accordance with
generally accepted accounting standards. They are audited by the
Director of Audit and subsequently tabled in the Legislative Council
every year, together with the Registry’s annual report . After they
have been tabled, the audited accounts and annual report are
uploaded onto the Registry’s website to keep the public informed.

Chaired by the Registrar of Companies, the Investment Strategy
Committee oversees the performance of the Registry's investment
portfolio, formulates its investment policies, and considers
alternative investment strategies and proposals. The Committee
meets reqularly, and on an ad-hoc basis if the need arises.

In addition, the Registry’s officers regularly meet with the Permanent
Secretary for Financial Services and the Treasury (Financial
Services) and representatives of the Financial Services Branch to
review the Registry's performance and obtain endorsement of any
major operational and legislative initiatives. They also meet with
representatives of the Bureau's Treasury Branch to evaluate and
monitor the Registry’s financial performance every six months.
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Robust Internal Control and
Risk-Management Systems

The Registry has established a sound and effective risk-
management and internal control system with clear policies and
regulations concerning administrative, procurement and financial
matters; proper segregation of duties; alignment of IT systems with
its corporate mission, policies and objectives; and the provision
of services to customers. All these are reviewed regularly and
updated to suit the changing business environment and to align
with policies and requlations promulgated by Government bureaux.
Major updates of such policies and regulations are brought to
the attention of the Registry's staff members on a regular and
timely basis.

Development Steering Committee

Long-term planning and strategies are essential for the Registry's
business development, especially in terms of maintaining an
excellent Registry and providing high-quality services to the
community. Chaired by the Registrar of Companies, the Development
Steering Committee consists of senior members of the Registry’s
staff. It is responsible for charting a course for the Registry's long-
term business development and overseeing the implementation of
key initiatives and projects.

Following the successful launch of the e-Registry and the one-
stop service for electronic company incorporation and business
registration in March 2011, the Committee continues to oversee
the further development of electronic filing services and system
enhancements to prepare for the implementation of the new
Companies Ordinance.
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IT Security

The establishment of the Cyber Search Centre and e-Registry
means the Registry now provides round-the-clock online company
search and incorporation services to its customers. These need to
be supported by secure, stable and reliable computer systems. The
Development Steering Committee pays particular attention to the
Registry's IT functions and their interface with other core business
activities, to ensure that they align with the Registry’s corporate
mission, policies and objectives.

Furthermore, high-level security is essential for ensuring a
reliable infrastructure for providing services to customers. For
this purpose, the Registry has developed an IT Security Policy,
Guidelines on Information Security Incident Handling, and End
Users' Instructions on IT Security for its staff. These are reviewed
and updated periodically to ensure that they are consistent with
prevailing guidelines and standards. Registry staff members are
regularly updated in order to reinforce their security awareness
and compliance with policies and instructions concerning this
subject. Furthermore, independent auditors are engaged to conduct
IT security risk assessments and audits to make certain that the
Registry’s IT security protection measures are effective and up
to standard.

Business Continuity Plan

A business continuity plan is in place to reduce the risk to business
in the event of system disruptions. It includes a disaster recovery
system to support critical functions and operations and to maintain
at least a minimal level of services. Periodic disaster recovery drills
test recovery procedures and ensure the disaster recovery system
will fFunction properly if needed.
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Integrity and Honesty in Public Service

The Registry’s staff members are required to abide by and comply
with the Civil Service Code. The Code sets out the core values that
are central to the integrity and probity of the civil service, and the
standards of conduct required of them, including organisational
and ethical principles of justice, impartiality, integrity, diligence and
accountability fFor decisions and actions.

As a public organisation, it is imperative for the Registry to have an
ethical, upright and honest workforce. Promotion and management
of integrity is therefore a top priority. Since its establishment in
2008, the Integrity Management Committee has been coordinating
and monitoring the Registry’s initiatives in this area. Moreover, it
has strived to promote high ethical standards among staff members,
and it draws up annual Integrity Management Programme Action
Plan to give them clear guidance about the Registry's commitment to
and efforts in the area of integrity management.

As the Registry’'s Ethics Officer, the Registry Manager oversees
the planning and implementation of its integrity management
programme. The subject of integrity is also highlighted in the
induction programme for new staff members, and a section dedicated
to integrity management has been set up in the Departmental Portal
as a repository for guidelines and circulars on integrity, conduct and
discipline that all staff members can refer to readily.

All the initiatives set out in the 2011-12 Integrity Management
Programme Action Plan were implemented successfully during
the year. Staff members were alerted about integrity issues and
the prevention of corruption via in-house video shows and talks.
They were also encouraged to attend conferences, seminars and
workshops on this subject organised by the Civil Service Bureau.
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Staff Complaints Procedures

The Registry has adopted and promulgated procedures that allow
employees to raise concerns in confidence about possible breaches
of policies, regulations or the code of ethics. As its designated Staff
Complaints Officer, the Registry Manager is responsible for dealing
with staff complaints. A monitoring system is in place to ensure that
all of these are handled in a fair and appropriate manner.

Good Customer and Public Relations

Proper and Effective Channels of Communications

with Customers and the Public

To ensure the Registry’s stakeholders and the general public are
provided with clear and sufficient information about its operations,
the Registry fully complies with the Government’'s Code on Access to
Information, which sets out a formal administrative framework For
the provision of information to the public. The Registry has adhered
to the Code ever since it was Ffirst introduced in 1995.

All appropriate requests made under the Personal Data Privacy
Ordinance for information concerning personal data have been
handled in a timely and appropriate way, and in accordance with
the guidelines promulgated by the Government and the Office of
the Privacy Commissioner for Personal Data. Apart from this, the
Registry has set up effective channels for communicating with
its customers and the public. These are explained in detail in the
section entitled Liaison with Customers and Other Jurisdictions.

Evaluation Mechanisms

During the past year, the Registry has focused on refining its
existing and well-established channels for gathering comments,
suggestions and opinions from different groups of customers. The
goal is to use these more effectively during reviews of existing
business processes, and for the purpose of planning initiatives that
will result in Further upgrades to its services.
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At the same time, it endeavours to promote awareness of its
performance pledges and its success in complying with these
more fully among the public. Every year, the Registry conducts a
Customer Services Survey, and it gathers customer feedback via
suggestion and comment forms and the e-Search Helpdesk. In
2011-12, it collected 34 suggestions and comments by such means
and through the Companies Registry Customer Ligison Group. All of
them were carefully reviewed and acted upon where appropriate.

Commitment to Corporate Social
Responsibility

The Registry’s established methods of ensuring the maintenance of
the highest ethical standards in the conduct of its business, and for
fostering a caring attitude towards the community, the environment
and the wellbeing of its staff members are fully described in
the section entitled Human Resources and Corporate Social
Responsibility.
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Organisation

As at 31 March 2012, a total of 364 people - 290 civil servants and
74 contract staff - worked at the Companies Registry, 13 more than
on the same day a year earlier. The slight increase in the headcount
was mainly due to the increased workload of the Registry’s daily
operations, as well as the development of the Integrated Companies
Registry Information System (ICRIS).

Human Resources

Staff Recruitment

The Registry has developed its human resources policies and
strategies in order to build the team of high-calibre and professional
staff members it needs to fulfil its mission to provide quality
services to customers, and for the further development of its role
in the future. Its Departmental Establishment Committee, which
consists of senior officers, considers staffing proposals and makes
recommendations to the Registrar of Companies on how to optimise
the use of the Registry's manpower resources.

Training and Development

Every year, the Registry draws up a Departmental Training and
Development Plan to satisfy its operational requirements and
support the development of its staff members. Training managers
are appointed to implement and oversee training initiatives for
officers, in line with the Training Administration System established
in June 2010.

The Registry always emphasises a culture of continuous learning
and development. For this purpose, it encourages staff members to
attend training programmes organised by the Civil Service Training
and Development Institute. It also offers financial support to staff
members who wish to attend external work-related courses and
examinations. In addition, the Registry conducted a number of
in-house training sessions during 2011-12. These updated staff
members about its latest initiatives, and helped to familiarise them
with new working procedures.
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New staff members undergo a two-day Induction Programme to
give them a better understanding of the Registry and its work. The
participants of the Registry’'s Management Retreat Programme was
last year expanded to include clerical staff members who have
assumed managerial roles. This programme allows the participants
to enhance their change-management competencies and team
spirit. In addition, the Registry aims to broaden the perspectives of
its staff members by arranging for them to take part in attachment
programmes with the companies registries of other jurisdictions.

Registry staff members spent a total of 516 days participating in
various training programmes during the year.

Communication

Effective two-way communication between management and
staff and between staff members is a valuable tool for ensuring
the success of any organisation. The Registry is no exception. Its
Departmental Consultative Committee consists of management
and staff representatives, and it holds regular meetings to discuss
topics that concern staff members. The Registrar of Companies
also meets divisional managers regularly to discuss issues relating
to the Registry's operations and initiatives. Furthermore, its staff
newsletter helps staff members to learn more about developments
in the Registry and their colleagues.
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The Registry management strives to encourage all staff members
to perform to their full potential as a means of enhancing its overall
effectiveness and productivity. Each staff member’'s supervising
officer conducts an annual appraisal interview, during which they
discuss the staff member’s performance and recommends training or
development needs. These interviews are also good opportunities
for supervisors and subordinates to focus on career prospects,
aspirations and development plans.

Moreover, the Registry recognises the importance of staff
complaints. It has a well-established mechanism for handling these,
details of which have been promulgated to every staff member. The
Registry Manager has been appointed as its Departmental Staff
Complaints Officer, with the responsibility of ensuring that every
complaint is properly handled, and that any necessary remedial
action is taken promptly.

Staff Relations

Social and recreational activities are essential for enhancing
relations between staff members and their physical well-being.
The Registry organised a wide range of these for its staff members
during 2011-12. They included a Trip to the habitat of Chinese
Pink Dolphins at Lung Kwu Chau, a Day trip to Macauv, a Christmas
Party-cum-Lunch Buffet, and the screening of a video about stress
management. A number of special interest classes were also held,
covering subjects like Mosaic Art, Chinese Calligraphy and Western
Cuisine Cookery. Members of the families of Registry staff members
were also invited to join some of these events, in order to cultivate a
sense of belonging among staff members.
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Trip to the habitat of Chinese
Pink Dolphins at Lung Kwu Chau

goo0o00o0o00oOoooooo
2011 Christmas Party-cum-Lunch Buffet
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Mosaic Art Class
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Western Cuisine Cookery Class
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Chinese Calligraphy Class
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The New Companies Section and

Development Section receives
the 2011 Best Service Award

Motivation and Recognition

The Registry's three Staff Motivation Schemes promote awareness
of its performance pledges and commitment to fulfilling them. They
are the Registry Performance Award, Best Service Award and Best
Counter Staff Award.

The Registry exceeded all the targets for its pledges during 2011-12.
The Registry Performance Award was therefore bestowed on all
eligible staff members in recognition of their efforts and excellent
performance. In 2011, our customers voted Registration of New
Companies - Local company (e-Submission), one of the services
provided by the New Companies Section and supported by the
Development Section, as the winner of the Best Service Award.
Meanwhile, the Best Counter Staff Award helps to foster the
dedication of our staff to providing courteous and efficient services.
Last year, our customers returned a total of 2,126 ballot forms to

choose 14 recipients for this accolade.
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Corporate Social Responsibility

As a public organisation, the Registry recognises that the
sustainable growth of the community is as important as the growth
of individual businesses. It therefore assigns a high priority to social
and environmental sustainability commitments to its customers,
staff members and the community as a whole. In 2010, it adopted a
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Policy Statement that sets out
the framework for discharging its corporate social responsibilities.
The text of this is provided in Appendix G.

Upholding the Highest Ethical Standards

All the targets set by the Registry's Integrity Management
Committee in its Integrity Management Programme Action Plan for
2011-12 were attained during the course of the year.

000000ODOOOOO0OO0O0000O00O0

A talk for staff members conducted by
the ICAC in January 2012

jooo0o0oOooooOooOoooo
Viewing an integrity management video on “the Mirror”
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Caring for the Environment

The Registry is committed to managing and conducting its
operations in an environmentally responsible manner. It has
adopted environmentally friendly practices as an integral part of
its operations, and it encourages staff members to care for the
environment. In 2011, the Registry fully achieved its targets for key
green measures. Details of these can be found in its Environmental
Report 2011, which can be downloaded from the Registry's website.

1 O0oo0oo0O0oo0ooOooon

| C U FE .
R COMPANIES REGISTRY | 2011 Environmental Report

e-Filing Services
L el s

With the full implementation of electronic services under ICRIS and
with more customers switching to the electronic filing services, the
Registry strongly believes the use of paper by the Registry and the
business community will decrease substantially in the near future.
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The Companies Registry is awarded the
Gold Award for Volunteer Service in 2011

The Registry participated in the Environmental Protection
Department’s Indoor Air Quality Certificate Scheme for Offices and
Public Places, and it received a “Good Class” certificate for this.
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Caring for the Community

The Registry took part in a number of voluntary and charitable
services during the year, and these efforts were warmly received by
their beneficiaries.

The Companies Registry Volunteer Team was established in 2002
to provide a variety of voluntary services to the underprivileged, the
elderly, and the entire community.
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Staff members put on sporty
attire for Dress Casual Day 2011
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Visit to senior citizens living in Kowloon City
during the Tuen Ng Festival
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Calling on the elderly in Kowloon City s ELIREET YT e
during the Mid-Autumn Festival
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A Christmas Party for children with learning disabilities

{ O0000o0O0oO0OOoOOoOooOOoOOOOOOObO
Senior citizens welcome Team members at the Jockey
Club Wong Chi Keung District Elderly Community Centre
in Aberdeen

4 Doooooooooo

N H IE ﬁ ' — Selling flags for the Hong Kong
NIES BEGISTRY ’ Association for Cleft Lip and Palate

3 | 00 Annual Report 2011-12



S ‘ 0oooo Companies Registry

oooddooodo
Human Resources and Corporate Social Responsibility

00000000000

Preparing gifts to distribute
during voluntary activities

0000000000000000000o The Registry was granted the Caring Organisation Logo from 2008
gooood to 2012.
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caringorganisation

Awarded by The Hong Kong Council of Social Service
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A Job Shadowing Programme for students from
Ling Liang Church € Wun Secondary School
conducted in February 2012

Occupational Safety and Health

The Registry is committed to providing a healthy and safe workplace
for all its staff members. It established a Safety Committee in 2000,
to fFormulate, implement, monitor and review safety policies and
measures. Regqular occupational safety inspections are conducted
to identify potential hazards on its premises, and any identified
areas are followed up effectively. Moreover, staff members are
encouraged to attend relevant training courses to promote their
occupational safety awareness.
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Communicating with the Community

Soliciting the Views of Customers

Caring for and respecting its customers is one of the Companies
Registry’s core values. It values their feedback and suggestions,
and it believes in listening to them and taking their needs and
expectations into account when it designs and delivers its services.
To do this, the Registry has well-established communication
channels for collecting views and opinions from various
customer groups.

One of the most important of these is the Companies Registry
Customer Liaison Group (CRCLG). Besides senior Registry officers,
it consists of representatives from the Law Society of Hong Kong,
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the Hong
Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries, the Hong Kong Association
of Banks, and some major customers. The Group’s regular meetings
offer a useful and effective forum for briefing customers about the
Registry’s policies and procedures, and for exchanging ideas about

its services and latest initiatives.
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The Registry also pays courtesy visits to major customers and
carries out public consultations about legislative and procedural
changes. To showcase its services to the business community, the
Registry frequently participates in talks and activities organised by
professional bodies.

Every year, the Registry conducts a Customer Services Survey, and it
gathers customer feedback via suggestion and comment forms and
the e-Search Helpdesk. It collected 34 suggestions and comments
via these and the CRCLG during 2011-12. All were carefully reviewed
and acted upon where appropriate.

Registry Website

The Registry's website (wWww.cr.gov.hk) presents comprehensive and
up-to-date information about its core business activities, legislative
changes, filing requirements and development programmes. Its
contents are available in traditional and simplified Chinese and
English, and they are reqularly reviewed and updated to keep
customers abreast of the latest developments.

Customers may also download a number of forms from the website,
as well as publications such as the Companies Registry Annual
Reports, Reports and Consultation Papers of the Standing Committee
on Company Law Reform, Consultation Papers on the rewriting
of the Companies Ordinance, and external circulars issued by
the Registry.

gooooooooo

Number of visits to the Registry's website per annum
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Judiciary colleagues visit the
Companies Registry

Enquiry Hotline

The Companies Registry Enquiry Hotline ((852) 2234 9933) answers
enquiries about its services on a 24/7 basis. Callers can also obtain
information pamphlets from it by fax.

gooooooood
Number of calls taken by enquiry hotline per annum

Receiving Visitors

The Registry receives visitors from other government departments,
local professional bodies and educational institutions from time
to time. These are very good opportunities for the organisations
concerned to learn more about the Registry's services and the

Hong Kong company registration system.
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City University of Hong Kong students
visit the Companies Registry
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Ligison with other Registries

Contacts and Cooperation with the Mainland and

Other Registries

The Registry continuously establishes and fosters links with
its counterparts in Mainland China and other jurisdictions. This
enables it to exchange ideas and share experience about company
registration services and the development of company laws in other
jurisdictions, which in turn helps the Registry to formulate new
initiatives and strategies to enhance the quality of its services.

During the past year, delegations from the Registry visited a number
of other registries and attended international forums, including:

* Annual Conferences of the Corporate Registers Forum (CRF) in
Singapore in May 2011, and in New Delhi, India, in February 2012;
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The Registrar heads the Registry's delegation to the
CRF Conference 2011

0000000000000 000000020120

The Business Manager leads the Registry's delegation
to the CRF Conference 2012

- I0DODODDDOODDOOODOD 00 A visit to the Market Supervision Administration of Shenzhen
ooo Municipality in August 2017;
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oooooon

Officers of the Companies Registry and the Financial
Services and the Treasury Bureau visit the Market
Supervision Administration of Shenzhen Municipality
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- DDODOODODOOODOOOOOODOO * Mrs Karen Ho, Deputy Principal Solicitor, attended the OECD Peer
ubooboboobooboonoono Review Group Meeting in Paris, France, in September 2011; and

ooooooo

e DDOOOOODDDODOOODDOOOOOO * A visit to the State Administration for Industry and Commerce
uboooboooboooog and Beijing Administration for Industry and Commerce, Mainland
China in October 2011.
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The Registrar of Companies visits the

State Administration for Industry and Commerce
and Beijing Administration for Industry and
Commerce, Mainland China

000000000000 00D0O0O0D0OO In addition, the Registry received visitors from other regulatory
oooooooooooon authorities and professional bodies from around the world, including:
- DOODDOODOODOOOO * The Registrar of the Central Mercantile Registry, Spain;
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The Registrar of the Central Mercantile Registry,
Spain visits the Companies Registry
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* A delegation led by the Minister for Commerce and Employment,
the States of Guernsevy;

* The Registrar of Companies of Mauritius;

goooooo

The Registrar of Companies of Mauritius

} goooooooooo
— visits the Companies Registry

b
-

14

» Officials from the Singapore Police Force; and

* Officials from a number of Mainland provincial departments and
institutions.

In addition, the Registry continued to arrange attachment
programmes for officials from the Beijing and Shanghai
Administrations for Industry and Commerce.
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oooooooooOoooOoooooooa During the year 2011-12, the Registry signed Cooperation

uooboooOooooooooooooon Agreements to promote ligison, communication and co-operation

uboooboooooooobood with the Beijing Administration for Industry and Commerce and the
Ningbo Administration for Industry and Commerce.
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The Registrar of Companies signs a
Cooperation Agreement with the
Beijing Administration for Industry and
Commerce in Beijing
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o-operation Forum cum Si
The Registrar of Companies attends gning Ceremony
the Signing Ceremony with delegates
from Ningbo in Hong Kong
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hnuul Conference of Corporate Registers Forum | I:

Corporate Registers Forum

The Corporate Registers Forum is an international non-profit
organisation of administrators of corporate registers. Its annual
conferences offer opportunities for registry professionals from
different jurisdictions to share their experience, benchmark their
performance and practices, and gain new ideas and knowledge. The
Registry actively participates in the Forum, and the Registrar of
Companies has represented Hong Kong in serving as its treasurer
since 2008. The annual conferences held in Singapore in May
2011 and in New Delhi, Indig, in February 2012 were attended by
140 delegates from 44 jurisdictions and 129 delegates from 42
jurisdictions, respectively. Representatives from the World Bank
were also present to help jurisdictions explore global best practices.
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the CRF Conference 2012
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New e-Registry

The successful launch of the e-Registry and the electronic
incorporation (e-Incorporation) service and one-stop service for
company incorporation and business registration (one-stop service)
in early 2011 has brought Hong Kong into a new era of company
registration. Members of the public can now simultaneously
incorporate a company and apply for business registration by using
the Companies Registry's one-stop online service. In straightforward
cases, they can obtain a certificate of incorporation and business
registration certificate for their newly formed company within

one hour.

www.eregistry.gov.hk

at i} 5
REGISTRY

Delivers efficiency for companies

gooogo
ooooo0o0oooOooooOoooOooon
coodoboooooboooboooooboo
cobooboooooooobooooboo
oooooooooooooooooooon
coodoboooooboooboooooboo
cobooboooooooobooooboo
ooooOo0ooOoOooooo

e-Filing

The new electronic filing channel launched in February 2012 has
extended the Registry's e-Filing services to include all the specified
forms most commonly filed with the Registry under the Companies
Ordinance. R phased approach is being adopted to ensure the
smooth implementation of the new services and to allow customers
sufficient time to prepare for them. Meanwhile, the Registry is
continuously exploring and developing other value-added e-Registry
services in response to customers' needs.
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Annual Returns and e-Reminders

Timely disclosure of company information is essential for Hong Kong
to maintain its status as a major international business and financial
centre, and to safequard the interests of investors and stakeholders
in a company. The Registry plans to launch a new electronic service
for the submission of annual returns by local private companies
during 2012. One of its key features will be the provision of an
annual return already populated with key information about the
company for completion and submission online. An Annual Return
e-Reminder service to remind subscribers electronically about Filing
annual returns on the anniversary dates of incorporation of their
companies will also be introduced.

Company Search Mobile Service

Given the increasing popularity of smartphones and other mobile
devices, the Registry has taken the initiative to enhance its search
services via mobile devices. The new Company Search Mobile
Search Service rolled out in June 2012 allows customers to conduct
company name searches and document index searches and
obtain company particulars reports via their mobile devices. This
marks another milestone in the technological enhancement of the
Registry's services.

P ] .
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Implementing the new Companies
Ordinance

Following the passage of the Companies Bill on 12 July 2012, more
than ten pieces of subsidiary legislation needed for implementation
of the new Companies Ordinance are now being prepared. We
target to submit the subsidiary legislation to the Legislative Council
for scrutiny in early 2013 and for enactment within the 2012-13
legislative session. The new Companies Ordinance will come into
force thereafter.

The implementation of the new Companies Ordinance will entail
a number of new roles and functions for the Registry. They
will include, for example, a new regime for compounding certain
specified offences, rather than prosecuting such breaches; a new
regime to protect personal information about directors and company
secretaries; and a new system to enhance transparency in the
registration of charges. The Registrar of Companies will also have
wider requlatory powers to safeguard the register's integrity. In
addition, there will be new filing requirements involving, for example,
the submission of a statement of capital every time a company's
capital structure is changed, and notices of the redenomination of
share capital. Highlights of the new roles and functions and relevant

preparatory work are set out in Appendix H.
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The Registry aims to make the transition to the new regime as
smooth as possible. The new Companies Ordinance will contain
detailed transitional provisions to ensure that this is the case.
Where there are major changes - for example, the abolition of par
value for shares or the abolition of the memorandum of association
- the new legislation has detailed deeming provisions to ensure
that existing companies can make the transition to the new regime
without difficulty.

In readiness for the new regime, the Registry is overhauling its
information systems and reviewing its policies, forms and operational
procedures. It will embark on a comprehensive publicity campaign
and educational programme in 2013 to ensure that the public are
aware of the changes that will result from the implementation of the
new Companies Ordinance.

The Registry is working tirelessly to ensure a smooth transition.
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List of Members of the Standing Committee on
Company Law Reform 2011-12
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Companies Registry Corporate Social Responsibility
Policy Statement
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Implementing the new Companies Ordinance
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Year to 31 March %
Increase / (Decrease)
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2012 20M

ooooo Registration of New Companies
oooo Local companies
—[0ooo — public companies 792 766 3.4
—oooo - private companies 138,574 143,031 (3.1
ooooa Non-Hong Kong companies 781 760 2.8
oooooo General Registration

of Documents
oooooo Documents received 2,133,701 1,949,575 94
ooooono Charges received 33,579 42,530 (21.0)
ooooooo Change of name notifications 16,052 14,643 9.6
oooooon Voluntary liquidation notices 955 988 (3.3)
oo00oao Company Searches
ooo0oOoooo Document image records searches 3,254,565 3,178,276 2.4
oooooo Company particulars searches 194,250 189,772 2.4
oooooo Directors' index searches 316,618 295,133 7.3
00 Prosecutions
oooo Summonses issued 6,200 5,483 13.1
oooo Striking OFff Actions
ooo0oOoooo Companies struck off 27,158 20,983 294
ooono Deregistrations
oooooooo Companies deregistered 28,623/ 26,222 9.2




ooooooon
Number of Companies Incorporated

ooooooon
Documents Received for Registration

2,200,000
2,133,701

2,100,000

2,000,000

1,949,575
1,900,000

1,800,000

1,737,648
1,700,000

1,600,000

1,500,000
09-10 10-11 1n-12

ooooooon
Document Image Records Searches

150,000
143,797
139,366
120,000
107,416
9,000
09-10 10-1 1-12
oooooood
Charges Received for Registration
50,000
42,530
40,000
33,579
32,102
30,000
20,000

09-10 10-11 1n-12

3,500,000

3,254,565

3,178,276

3,000,000 2,980,398

2,500,000
09-10 10-11 1-12
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oboooodoo
Performance Targets and Achievements

2011-12 2012-13
oooo oo
Achievements Targets
(oo) (oooo)
oo oo oo oo
Service DZS”D'E] nDooo oooo i oooo’ oDooo
o Dooo oooo 555 Service 0Dooo
s er\é|ced1 (Target) (Actual) q Oh' r d Standard' % Meeting
e % Meeting % Meeting CHCVS Standard
Standard Standard
(DooooooooOoooOoO)
(expressed in working days unless otherwise specified)
goooo
Registration of new companies®
-gooo
local company
-0ooooo 4 95 98 3 4 95
paper submission
-000000 2400 hrs 90 100 10 100 h* 90
e-Submission
-0oooo 14 95 98 3 14 95
non-Hong Kong companies
gooooooo
Change of names of
local companies
-000000 4 90 99 9 4 95*
paper submission
-000000 2400 hrs 90 100 10 100 hr* 90
e-Submission
gooooo
Registration of general documents
-0ooooo 6 90 98 8 6 90
paper submission
-gooooooo ooo n.A. ooo nA. ooo NA. ooo NA. 240 0 hrs 90
e-Submission of specified forms®*
oooo 8 90 99 9 8 90
Registration of charges
gopoooo
Deregistration of companies
-00000D000O0O 5 97 99 2 5 95

issue of approval letter




201-12 2012-13
oooo oo
Achievements Targets
(oD) (oooo)
oo oo goo oo
Service 523115_1521 oooo 0ooo oo oooo' 0ooo
Seri oDooo oooo 585 Service oooo
Ster\élce& (Target) (Actual) q °h_ verd Standard' % Meeting
andar % Meeting % Meeting CHCVE Standard
Standard Standard
(DoDoooooooooooo)
(expressed in working days unless otherwise specified)
gooooo
Online searches on the internet
-j0dooooooooo 500 mins 95 99 4 500 mins 95
supply of image records of
documents for download
-0pooooooooo? 300 hrs 95 100 5 300 hrs 95
supply of certified copies
of search results*
-oooo? 1 95 100 5 1 95
supply of certificates”
goooooooo
Onsite searches at the
Public Search Centre
-00oooooooao 200 0 mins 90 100 10 200 0 mins 95*
supply of hard copies of
search results
-doo00oooooooo 300 hrs 95 100 5 300 hrs 95
supply of certified copies of
search results
-0000 1 95 100 5 1 95
supply of certificates
ooooooo 200 0 mins 90 97 7 200 0 mins 90

(Dooooooo)

Onsite submission of documents

(queving time only)

/

! 0oo0ooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooon

The service standard for paper submission excludes the day of submission. The service standard for e-Submission is calculated from

the time of submission.

¢ [00O0O0O0OOOOODOOOODOOOODOOOOOOCOOOO

Business Registration Certificates are issued by the Companies Registry for the Inland Revenue Department, together with

Certificates of Incorporation.
g goOoo0oooOoOOoOoOoOooOoOOoOoOOoOoOoOOoOobOOoOoOOoOoobooOooooO

The service standard applies to specified forms which are submitted electronically and automatically processed by the Integrated

Companies Registry Information System.
¢ [0OO0OO0DOOOODOOODDOOOOO

Time for delivery by post or by courier service is excluded.

# 0OO0O0
Improved targets

gooOoooOoOoDoOoOoDOo
Launched on 20 February 2012
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Report of the Director of Audit

ERRBATRERRA
g ot &
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oooooO0oO0oO0oOoOoOOOoOo9sti1ie0n
oooo0o0ooooobooooooooon
oo0z012030310 00000000000
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oooo0o0ooooobooooooooon
ooo

goobooobooobooobodgo
oooooood
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00000(04300)07(4)00000000
00000000000000000000
00000000000000000000
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00000000000000007(5)00
00000000000000000000
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oooo0o0oO0oO0oOoooooooooooan
oooo0o0ooooobooooooooon
oooo0oOooOoOoooooooooooao

Audit Commission
The Government of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region

Independent Audit Report

To the Legislative Council

| certify that | have examined and audited the financial statements of
the Companies Registry Trading Fund set out on pages 95 to 119, which
comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2012, and
the statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity
and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

General Manager, Companies Registry Trading Fund’s
Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The General Manager, Companies Registry Trading Fund is responsible
for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and Ffair
view in accordance with section 7(4) of the Trading Funds Ordinance
(Cap. 430) and Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, and for such
internal control as the General Manager, Companies Registry Trading
Fund determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on my audit. | conducted my audit in accordance with section
7(5) of the Trading Funds Ordinance and the Audit Commission
auditing standards. Those standards require that | comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the



ooodbooooobooobooooobooo
goboobooooobooobooooboo
oooooooooooooooooooon
ooodbooooobooobooooobooo
goboobooooobooobooooboo
oooooooo

goboobooooobooobooooboo
oooooooooooo

uo
goboobooooobooobooooboo
ooooo0ooooooooooooon
2012030310 000000000000
goboobooooobooobooooboo
ooo7(4)00000000000O0O

ooooo
(Coooooooooon)

ooo

oooo
oooovod
ooooOoO2en
2012090 140

auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation
of financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the General Manager, Companies Registry
Trading Fund, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

| believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for my audit opinion.

Opinion

In my opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Companies Registry Trading Fund as at 31 March
2012, and of its results of operations and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and
have been properly prepared in accordance with the manner provided in
section 7(4) of the Trading Funds Ordinance.

LAU Sun-wo
Assistant Director of Audit
for Director of Audit

Audit Commission

26th Floor, Immigration Tower
7 Gloucester Road

Wanchai, Hong Kong

14 September 2012
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Ooz20120303100 000000

Annual Accounts of the Companies Regqistry Trading Fund
fFor the Year Ended 31 March 2012

0000000000 74)000000
Prepared and submitted pursuant to section 7(4) of the Trading Funds Ordinance



obdobodoodoood
Companies Registry Trading Fund Statement of Comprehensive Income

0020103031000 0
for the year ended 31 March 2012

(DCooooooo) oo

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) Note 2012 201
ooo Turnover (3) 483,191 476,052
oooo Operating costs (4) (239,882) (211,382)
oooog Profit from operations 243,309 264,670
oooog Other income (5) 14,241 5,812
oooooooo Profit before notional profits tax 257,550 270,482
ooooao Notional profits tax (6) (40,964) (43,671)
ooono Profit for the year 216,586 226,811
oooooo Other comprehensive income - -
0000000 Total comprehensive income 216,586 226,811

for the year
ooooooo Rate of return on fixed assets (7) 54.9% / 59.4%

dooooOoooOoOooOoOoooOoOooOoOoooono

The notes on pages 101 to 119 form part of these financial statements.
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Companies Registry Trading Fund Statement of Financial Position

020120 30 310
as at 31 March 2012

(DCooooooa) oo
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) Note 2012 201
ooooo Non-current assets
oooooooa Property, plant and equipment (8) 324,017 331,401
ooono Intangible assets 9) 40,862 43,783
ooooon Placement with the Exchange Fund (10) 103,518 -
468,397 375,184
ooono Current assets
doooooooo Debtors and prepayments 8,499 2,908
oooooooo Amounts due from related parties 927 604
ooono Bank deposits 558,700 634,500
ooooooa Cash and bank balances 12,914 24,143
581,040 662,155
ooono Current liabilities
oooog Creditors (22,967) (27,941)
oooooooo Amounts due to related parties (83,108) (48,627)
ooooono Provision for employee benefits (1 (494) (1,618)
oooooon Notional profits tax payable (10,092) (19,655)
(116,661) (97,841)
oooooo Net current assets 464,379 564,314
0ooooooooo Total assets less current liabilities 932,776 939,458




Oo00o00odooooodn @
Companies Registry Trading Fund Statement of Financial Position (continveq)

(booooooa) od
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) Note 2012 2011
ooooo Non-current liabilities
oooO Deferred tax (12) (6,925) (7,398)
oooooo Provision for employee benefits (1m (53,919) (49,943)
(60,844) (57,341)
ooo NET ASSETS 871,932 882,157
ooooo CAPITAL AND RESERVES
oooooO Trading fund capital (13) 138,460 138,460
oooO Retained earnings (14) 516,886 516,886
oooOo Proposed dividend (15) 216,586 226,811
871,932 882,157
/
ooooboooouooooocooooooooooo
The notes on pages 101 to 119 form part of these financial statements.
= )
fod
Ooooooo Ms Ada LL Chung, JP
oooooooooooo General Manager, Companies Registry Trading Fund

oooboooooon 14 September 2012
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Companies Registry Trading Fund Statement of Changes in Equity

0020103031000 0
for the year ended 31 March 2012

(DooooooO)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) 2012 20m
ooooono Balance at beginning of year 882,157 796,635
oooooon Total comprehensive income for the year 216,586 226,811
ooooon Dividend paid during the year (226,811) (141,289)
ooooono Balance at end of year 871,932 882,157

ododooooobOooooboooocoooooa
The notes on pages 101 to 119 form part of these financial statements.
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Companies Registry Trading Fund Statement of Cash Flows

0020103031000 0
for the year ended 31 March 2012

(Cooooooa) oad
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) Note 2012 201
ooooooo Cash Flows from
ooono operating activities
oooa Profit from operations 243,309 264,670
ooooao Depreciation and amortisation 18,227 12,880
oooooooooo (Increase) / Decrease in debtors and (3,848) 2,697
(Coyoo prepayments
ooooooooo Increase in amounts due from (323) (17)
od related parties
ooooo@o)yoo (Decrease) / Increase in creditors (4,974) 3,210
oo0o0ooooO Increase / (Decrease) in amounts due 34,481 (9,956)
oo/oo) to related parties
goooooooo Increase in provision for employee benefits 2,852 505
ooooooo Notional profits tax paid (51,000) (31,814)
ooooooo Net cash from 238,724 242,175
oooo operating activities
ooooooo Cash flows from
oooo investing activities
ooooo3ooooo Decrease / (Increase) in bank deposits with 63,201 (191,200)
ooooooo/Aoo) original maturity over three months
goooooooo Increase in placement with the Exchange Fund (103,518) -
ooog Interest received 12,498 4,867
00DO0oooOoooo Purchase of property, plant and (7,922) (19,396)
ooooao equipment and intangible assets
00000000000  Net cash used in investing activities (35,741) (205,729)
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Companies Registry Trading Fund Statement of Cash Flows (continved)

002012030310000
for the year ended 31 March 2012

(Dooooooo) oo

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) Note 2012 201

ooooooO Cash Flows from
oooo financing activities

oooo Dividend paid (226,811) (141,289)

0000000 Net cash used in (226,811) (141,289)
oooo financing activities

oooooooo Net decrease in cash and cash (23,828) (104,843)
oooo equivalents

0000000 Cash and cash equivalents at 42,043 146,886
oooo beginning of year

ooooooO Cash and cash equivalents at (16) 18,215 42,043
oooo end of year /

dooooooooboooooooooooooog
The notes on pages 101 to 119 form part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(CoooooooooOoooono)

(Amounts expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated)

1. 00
goOOoo1993be0 300 OOOOn
0000(O04300)0304060000
oooi99308bi1d0oOnoonooon
00(@ooooo)Dooooooon
odoooooOoOoOoOooOOooOOooOoooao
ooooooooo

2. 000000
(@ 0OOOODO

oooooooOoooooooao
ooo0o0oO0oOoooooooooo
(COOoOoOoOoOoobDoOOoOoOoO
oooooOoOoooooooooon
00000000 DoOoOoooOo)o
ooooooooooooooon
oooo

() 0OOOOOOOO

gcobooooobooooooooo
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oooooooooooooooon
ooo0ooOoOoooooooooo
ooooooOoooooooooan
ooooooooooooooon
ooo0ooOoOoooooooooo
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ooo0ooOoOoooooooooo
ooooooOoooooooooan
ooooooooooooooon
oooooooood

1.

General

The Companies Registry Trading Fund (“the CRTF") was established
on 1 August 1993 under the Legislative Council Resolution passed
on 30 June 1993 pursuant to sections 3, 4 and 6 of the Trading
Funds Ordinance (Cap. 430). The CRTF provides its customers with
services and facilities to incorporate companies and to register and
examine company documents.

Significant accounting policies
(@) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs"), a collective term which includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs") and Interpretations issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA"). A summary of the significant accounting policies
adopted by the CRTF is set out below.

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The measurement basis used in the preparation of these
financial statements is historical cost.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of policies
and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and
expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and various other factors that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the
results of which form the basis of making judgements about
carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

= | 00 Annual Report 2011-12
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The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.

There are no critical accounting judgements involved in the
application of the CRTF's accounting policies. There are also no
key assumptions concerning the future, or other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the next year.

Financial assets and financial liabilities

() The CRTF recognises financial assets and financial
liabilities on the date it becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets
and financial liabilities are measured initially at fair value,
which normally equals to the transaction prices, plus
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial assets or issue of the financial
liabilities.

(i) The CRTF's financial assets consist of loans and
receivables which are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market and which the CRTF has no intention
of trading. They are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less impairment losses, if any.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial
liability and of allocating the interest income or interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash payments or receipts through the expected life of
the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter



(i)
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(i)

period to the net carrying amount of the financial asset
or financial liability. When calculating the effective
interest rate, the CRTF estimates cash flows considering
all contractual terms of the financial instruments but does
not consider future credit losses. The calculation includes
all fees paid or received between parties to the contract
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts.

The carrying amount of loans and receivables is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period to determine
whether there is objective evidence of impairment. If any
impairment evidence exists, a loss is recognised in the
statement of comprehensive income as the difference
between the asset's carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the
asset's original effective interest rate. If in a subsequent
period, the amount of such impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be linked objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, the
impairment loss is reversed through the statement of
comprehensive income.

Financial liabilities are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

A financial asset is derecognised when the contractual
rights to receive the cash flows from the financial
asset expire, or where the financial asset together with
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership have
been transferred. A financial liability is derecognised
when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged
or cancelled, or when it expires.
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Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment appropriated to the CRTF on
1 August 1993 were measured initially at deemed cost equal
to the value contained in the Legislative Council Resolution
for the setting up of the CRTF. Property, plant and equipment
acquired since 1 August 1993 are capitalised at their costs of
acquisition.

The following property, plant and equipment are stated at
cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses
(note 2(F)):

- buildings held for own use appropriated to the CRTF on
1 August 1993; and

- plant and equipment, including computer equipment,
furniture and fittings, motor vehicles and other
equipment.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of property,
plant and equipment, less their estimated residual value, on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives as follows:

- Buildings 30 years
- Computer equipment 5 years
- Furniture and fittings 5 years
- Office and specialist equipment 5 years

The land on which the CRTF's buildings are situated as
appropriated to the CRTF on 1 August 1993 is regarded as a
non-depreciating asset.

Gains or losses arising from the disposal of property, plant and
equipment are determined as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, and
are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income at
the date of disposal.
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(e)

Intangible assets

Intangible assets include acquired computer software licences
and capitalised development costs of computer software
programmes. Expenditure on development of computer
software programmes is capitalised if the programmes are
technically feasible and the CRTF has sufficient resources
and the intention to complete development. The expenditure
capitalised includes direct labour and cost of materials.
Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any impairment losses (note 2(F)).

Amortisation of intangible assets is charged to the statement
of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the
assets’ estimated useful lives of 5 years.

Impairment of fixed assets

The carrying amounts of fixed assets, including property,
plant and equipment and intangible assets, are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period to identify any indication
of impairment. If there is an indication of impairment,
an impairment loss is recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income whenever the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount
of an asset is the greater of its fair value less costs to sell and
value in use.

Notional profits tax

(i)  The CRTF has no tax liability under the Inland Revenue
Ordinance (Cap. 112). However, the Government
of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
(“the Government”) requires the CRTF to pay to the
General Revenue an amount in lieu of profits tax
(i.e. notional profits tax) calculated on the basis of the
provisions of the Inland Revenue Ordinance. Notional
profits tax expense for the year comprises current tax
and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.
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(h)

(il

(i)

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of
previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their
tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.

All deferred tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which the assets can be utilised,
are recognised.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based
on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of
the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax
rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow the related tax benefit to
be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent
that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised as services are provided. Interest

income is recognised as it accrues using the effective

interest method.
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(1)

Employee benefits

The employees of CRTF comprise civil servants and contract
staff. Salaries, staff gratuities, and annual leave entitlements
are accrued and recognised as expenditure in the year in
which the associated services are rendered by the staff. For
civil servants, staff on-costs, including pensions and housing
benefits provided to the staff by the Government, are charged
as expenditure in the year in which the associated services
are rendered.

For civil servants employed on pensionable terms, their pension
liabilities are discharged by reimbursement of the staff on-
cost charged by the Government. For other staff, contributions
to Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are charged to the
statement of comprehensive income as incurred.

Related parties

The CRTF is a separate accounting entity within the
Government established under the Trading Funds Ordinance.
During the year, the CRTF has entered into transactions with
various related parties, including government bureaux and
departments, trading funds and financially autonomous bodies
controlled or significantly influenced by the Government, in the
ordinary course of its business.

Cash equivalents

Cash equivalents are short-term highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having
been within three months of maturity at acquisition.

Impact of new and revised HKFRSs

The HKICPA has issued a number of new and revised HKFRSs
which are effective for the current accounting period. There
have been no changes to the accounting policies applied in
these financial statements for the years presented as a result
of these developments.

The CRTF has not applied any new HKFRSs that are not yet
effective for the current accounting period (note 20).
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3. 004d 3. Turnover
2012 2011
ooooooao Charges registration fees 16,388 20,284
ooooooo Incorporation fees 238,328 246,953
oooooooo Annual registration fees 129,331 120,401
ooooooo Search and copying fees 61,130 58,146
ooooooooao Fees for administration and collection services 12,225 7,676
oooo Other fees 25,789 22,592
oo Total 483,191 476,052
/
4, 0000 4. Operating costs
2012 2011
oooo Staff costs 165,324 151,679
oooooo General operating expenses 54,675 44,331
ooooon Central administration overheads 1,218 2,067
ooooo Depreciation and amortisation 18,227 12,880
oooo Audit fees 438 425
oo Total 239,882 211,382




5. 0000 5. Otherincome
2012 2011
oooooo Interest from bank deposits 9,282 5812
oooooooo Interest from placement with the Exchange Fund 4,959 -
0o Total 14,241 5,812
6. 00000 6. Notional profits tax
() DOODOOOOOO (@) The notional profits tax charged to the statement of
oooooooo comprehensive income represents:
2012 201
oooag Current tax
ooooooo Provision for notional profits tax 41,437 41,794
ooo for the year
oooo Deferred tax
ooooooo Origination and reversal of (473) 1,877
ooo temporary differences
oooono Notional profits tax 40,964 43,671
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() DOODODODOODOOOOOOOO (b)  The reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit
oooooo at applicable tax rates is as follows:;
2012 201
doo0ooooo Profit before notional profits tax 257,550 270,482
0000000016.5% Tax at Hong Kong profits 42,496 44,630
(20110 O 16.5%) tax rate of 16.5%
ooooo (20110 16.5%)
ooooooooo Tax effect of non-taxable revenue (1,532) (959)
o0
00oooo Actual tax expense 40,964 43,671
7. gOoooooa 7. Rate of return on fixed assets
DO0O0oO0DO0OO0OO00OOO000(@OD The rate of return on fixed assets is calculated as total
Ooooooooo)ooooooon comprehensive income (excluding interest income and interest
ubboobobooboooooooo expenses) divided by average net fixed assets, and expressed as
gobooboboobboobboo a percentage. Fixed assets include property, plant and equipment,
uooooooooooooooooo and intangible assets. The CRTF is expected to meet a target
oobooooooooooons3% rate of return on fixed assets of 8.3 per cent (2011: 8.3 per cent)

(20110 8.3%)01

per year as determined by the Financial Secretary.



8. DUOUODOOODOO

8. Property, plant and equipment

ood oood oooo
ood gooo oo oooo og
Furniture  Office and
Landand  Computer and  specialist
buildings  equipment fittings  equipment Total
oo Cost
0201004010 At 1 April 2010 398,511 29,630 17,310 275 445,726
oo Additions - 224 3,978 - 4,202
020110 30 310 At 31 March 2011 398,511 25,854 21,288 275 445,928
oo Additions - 1,352 150 - 1,502
020120 30 310 At 31 March 2012 398,511 31,206 21,438 275 451,430
oooag Accumulated depreciation
0201004010 At 1 April 2010 72,585 25,134 8953 275 106,947
oooo Charge for the year 4,445 3,127 4,008 - 11,580
020110 30 310 At 31 March 2011 77,030 28,261 12,961 275 118,527
oooo Charge for the year 4,445 747 3,694 - 8,886
020120 30 310 At 31 March 2012 81,475 29,008 16,655 275 127,413
oooo Net book value
020120 30 310 At 31 March 2012 317,036 2,198 4,783 = 324,017
020110 30 310 At 31 March 2011 321,481 1,593 8,327 - 331,401
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9. 0O0O0O 9. Intangible assets
00DO00oO0oOooOooooon
Computer software licences and system development costs
2012 20N
oo Cost
aoa At beginning of year 175,714 160,520
oo Additions 6,420 15,194
ooo At end of year 182,134 175,714
ooog Accumulated amortisation
ooo At beginning of year 131,931 130,631
oooa Charge for the year 9,341 1,300
ooo At end of year 141,272 131,931
ooono Net book value
ooao At end of year 40,862 43,783
10000000 10. Placement with the Exchange Fund

Ooo0OoboOoboOoD1.03518000
(201100D0)00010000000O
0035180 000000000000
0o00000O0000ooooooo@o
0000)Dooooooooooo

OooO0oooOoO0ooobo1oooo0on
OooooooOooooOoOoooonoe
OooooooOooooos3nooooo
oooooooooOooOOoOOOoOoOO
O00O0O0O0O00000%02012000
O000005.6%020110 00O 0O 6.0%0

The balance of the placement with the Exchange Fund amounted
to HK$103.518 million (2011: HKS Nil), being the original placement
of HK$100 million plus HK$3.518 million interest paid but not yet
withdrawn at the end of the reporting period. The term of the
placement is six years from the date of placement, during which the
amount of original placement cannot be withdrawn.

Interest on the placement is payable at a fixed rate determined
every January. The rate is the average annual investment return of
the Exchange Fund's Investment Portfolio for the past six years or
the average annual yield of three-year Exchange Fund Notes for
the previous year subject to a minimum of zero per cent, whichever
is the higher. The interest rate has been fixed at 5.6 per cent per
annum for the year 2012 and at 6.0 per cent per annum for the
year 2011.
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ogoogo
000000000000O0o0ooo
00000000000000000O0
ooo

1.

Provision for employee benefits

This represents the estimated liability for employees’ annual leave
and obligations on contract-end gratuities payable to contract staff
for services rendered up to end of the reporting period.

120000 12. Deferred tax
00000O0O0O0O0OOOOoooooo The deferred tax liability recognised in the statement of financial
OOo0O0O0O0O0O0O0OOoooooooo position arises entirely from depreciation allowances which are in
00000O0ooooo excess of the related depreciation and amortisation. The movements
during the year are as follows:
2012 20M
aooooo Balance at beginning of year 7,398 5,521
oooooo (Credited) / Charged to statement of (473) 1,877
(Coyoo comprehensive income
oooooo Balance at end of year 6,925 7,398
13000000 13. Trading fund capital

ooooooooooooa

This represents the Government's investment in the CRTF.

140000 14. Retained earnings
2012 2011
ooo0ooo Balance at beginning of year 516,886 516,886
ooooooo Total comprehensive income for the year 216,586 226,811
aooo Proposed dividend (216,586) (226,811)
oooooo Balance at end of year 516,886 516,886
/
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150000 15. Proposed dividend
0000000000000 0000 The proposed dividend to the Government is based on the total
00000000000 O0OO0O0O0O00n comprehensive income for the year and the target dividend payout
0000000 00D0% 000000 ratio of 100 per cent (2011: 100 per cent) stated in the annual
(20110 100%) O O O business plan approved by the Secretary for Financial Services and
the Treasury.
16.0000000 16. Cash and cash equivalents
2012 20N
oooooon Cash and bank balances 12,914 24,143
aooo Bank deposits 558,700 634,500
o0 Subtotal 571,614 658,643
ooooooo3on Less: Bank deposits with original (553,399) (616,600)
oooooono maturity over three months
ooooooo Cash and cash equivalents 18,215 42,043
/
170000000 17. Related party transactions

odoooooOoOooOOOOOOOOOo0
odoooooOoOoOoOoOoOooOOooOoooao
ooo

( 00000000 DOOODOOOOO
0000000000000000
0OD00000000000000
00000000 O0000O00O0
1,706.70 0 0 (20110 0 1,170.90
00)0

() DOODOOO0DOOODDOOOOOO
ooo0ooOoOoooooooooo
ooo0o0oO0oOoooooooooo
ooooooooooooooao
1,641.20 00 (20110 0 1,759.90
0o)oo

Apart from those separately disclosed in the financial statements,
the other material related party transactions for the year are
summarised as follows:

(a) Services provided to related parties included search and
copying services, collection of certain tax-loaded fees and bona
vacantia, and the administration of the Money Lenders Registry
on behalf of the Government. The total revenue derived
from these services amounted to HK$17.067 million (2011:
HK$11.709 million);

(b) Services received from related parties included services on
acquisition of stores, mail, printing, training, information
technology, building management, rental of accommodation,
central administration and auditing. The total cost incurred
on these services amounted to HKS$16.412 million (2011:
HK$17.599 million); and
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18.

(c) Capital expenditure in relation to information technology and
renovation services provided by related parties amounted to
HKS$0.150 million (2011: HK$3.701 million).

Services provided by or to related parties were charged at the
rates payable by the general public where such services were also
available to members of the public, or on a full cost recovery basis
where such services were only available to related parties.

Capital commitments

At the end of the reporting period, the CRTF had capital
commitments, so far as not provided for in the financial statements,
as follows:

2012 20M

oooooo Authorised and contracted for 50,826 51,877

19.

Oooodmo
(@ 0OOO

oooo0oOooooooooooa
oooooooooon

(b) O0OOD

cobobooobooooobooon
oooooooooooooooo
oooooon

oooooooooooooooo
cobooooobooooooooo
coooooooooon

19. Financial risk management

(@) Investment policy

To provide an ancillary source of income, surplus cash is placed
with banks in fixed-term deposits.

(b) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument
will fail to discharge an obligation and cause the other party to
incur a financial loss.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the
reporting period without taking account of any collateral held
or other credit enhancements is shown below:
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2012 2011
aooo Debtors 4,542 2,831
oo0ooooo Amounts due from related parties 927 508
oooooo Placement with the Exchange Fund 103,518 -
oooo Bank deposits 558,700 634,500
aooo Bank balances 12,887 24,115
0o Total 680,574 661,954

oooooooooooooooo
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ooboobooobooooooooo
coooboooooooooon

Debtors include mainly accrued interest and the associated
credit risk is minimal. For the placement with the Exchange
Fund, the credit risk is considered to be low.

To minimise credit risks, all fixed deposits are placed with
licensed banks in Hong Kong.

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty
in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities.

The CRTF employs projected cash flow analysis to manage
liquidity risk by forecasting the amount of cash required and
monitoring the working capital of the CRTF to ensure that all
liabilities due and known funding requirements could be met.
As the CRTF has a strong liquidity position, it has a very low
level of liquidity risk.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk refers to the risk of loss arising from changes
in market interest rates. This can be further classified into Fair
value interest rate risk and cash flow interest rate risk.
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Fair value interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of a
financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. Since the CRTF's bank deposits bear interest
at fixed rates, their fair values will fall when market interest
rates increase. However, as all the bank deposits are stated at
amortised cost, changes in market interest rates will not affect
their carrying amounts and the CRTF's profit and reserves.

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that future cash flows
of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in market interest rates. The CRTF is not exposed to material
cash flow interest rate risk because it has no major financial
instruments bearing interest at a floating rate.

The table below sets out the CRTF's exposure to interest
rate risk, based on the major interest bearing assets stated
at carrying amounts at the end of the reporting period and
categorised by the earlier of contractual repricing dates or
maturity dates.

300 0oo3000
good oooing oo
More than
3 months 3 months but not
or less more than 1 year Total
2012
ooono Bank deposits 203,900 354,800 558,700
2011
oooog Bank deposits 421,600 634,500

212,900
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(e) Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the Ffair value or future cash flows
of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
foreign exchange rates.

The CRTF does not have an exposure to currency risk as all of
its financial instruments are denominated in Hong Kong dollar.

(F) Other financial risk

The CRTF is exposed to financial risk arising from changes in
the interest rate on the placement with the Exchange Fund
which is determined every January (Note 10). It was estimated
that, as at 31 March 2012, a 50 basis point increase / decrease
in the interest rates for 2011 and 2012, with all other variables
held constant, would increase / decrease the profit for the year
and reserves by HKS0.5 million.

(g) Fair values

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets
is based on quoted market prices at the end of the reporting
period. In the absence of such quoted market prices, fair
values are estimated using present value or other valuation
techniques, using inputs based on market conditions existing at
the end of the reporting period.

All financial instruments are stated in the statement of financial
position at amounts equal to or not materially different from
their fair values.

20. Possible impact of amendments, new standards and
interpretations issued but not yet effective for the year
ended 31 March 2012
Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued a number of amendments, new standards and
interpretations which are not yet effective for the year ended
31 March 2012 and which have not been early adopted in these
financial statements.



000000000 OoOooooooao The CRTF is in the process of making an assessment of what the

000000000 0000000O00 impact of these amendments, new standards and interpretations
0000D0000D0OO0oDOoOoooooo is expected to be in the period of initial adoption. So far it has
000000000000000000 concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant
000000000 O00O0oOooOooon impact on the CRTF's results of operations and financial position.
ooooo
0000D0000D0000O0O00OOO The following developments may result in new or amended
0000D0000D00OO0O0Ooooooo disclosures in future financial statements:
ooooo
gooooooo
gooooooo

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

000000010 O00)Yoo0o0oooooo

- 0ooooooooo 201207010
Amendments to HKAS 1(Revised), Presentation of Financial Statements

- Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive Income 1 July 2012
000O00oOoi90(2011)000oOn 201301010

HKAS 19 (2011), Employee Benefits

oo0oo0oOo30000ooooooooo
- 0ooo0oooooooo

Amendments to HKAS 32, Financial Instruments: Presentation
- Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

do0oo0oooOovooOooOoOooooooon

1 January 2013

201401010

1 January 2014

- 00 -0000000d 201107010
- 00 -000000O000000 201301010
Amendments to HKFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures

- Disclosures - Transfer of Financial Assets 1July 201

- Disclosures - Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

ooo0oO0oO0OO0OO0OOo9uOuOoooon
HKFRS 9, Financial Instruments

0000000 O1300000000O
HKFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement

1 )anuary 2013

201501010
1 January 2015

201301010
1 )January 2013
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List of Members of the Bills Committee on Companies Bill

00O
0O00O0O0OMHOJP

ooo
0DooOooofp

0d
0oooo

000000SBSOS.BSE).O)P
ooooo
0000D00SBSO)P (02011050 250)
000000GBS
000000GBSO)P
000000SBsOJP
0Dooooosco)p
000000GBSO)P
000000GBSO)P
000000SBsOJP
0ooooosc

00000 (02011030140)
000000SBsOJP

0d
oooooo

ENEREEN
00000

ooooo

Chairman
Hon Paul CHAN Mo-po, MH, JP

Deputy Chairman
Hon Starry LEE Wai-king, |P

Members
Hon Albert HO Chun-yan

Ir Dr Hon Raymond HO Chung-tai, SBS, S.B.St)., JP
Hon James TO Kun-sun

Hon CHAN Kam-lam, SBS, JP (to 25 May 2011)
Dr Hon Philip WONG Yu-hong, GBS

Hon Miriam LAU Kin-yee, GBS, JP

Hon Abraham SHEK Lai-him, SBS, JP

Hon Audrey EU Yuet-mee, SC, JP

Hon Jeffrey LAM Kin-fung, GBS, JP

Hon Andrew LEUNG Kwan-yuen, GBS, JP

Hon WONG Ting-kwong, SBS, JP

Hon Ronny TONG Ka-wah, SC

Hon CHIM Pui-chung (to 14 March 2011)

Prof Hon Patrick LAU Sau-shing, SBS, P

Clerk
Ms Connie SZETO

Legal Adviser
Mr KAU Kin-wah

Mr Timothy TSO
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Measures for Enhancing Corporate Governance

Strengthening the Accountability of Directors

¢ Restricting the appointment of corporate directors by requiring
every private company to have at least one natural person to act as
director, to enhance transparency and accountability.

o (larifying in the statute the directors’ duty of care, skill and diligence
with a view to providing clear guidance to directors.

Enhancing Shareholder Engagement in the Decision-

Making Process

¢ Introducing a comprehensive set of rules for proposing and passing a
written resolution.

¢ Requiring a company to bear the expenses of circulating members’
statements relating to the business of, and proposed resolutions for,
Annual General Meetings, if they are received in time to be sent with
the notice of the meeting.

¢ Reducing the threshold requirement for members to demand a poll
from 10 per cent to 5 per cent of the total voting rights.

Improving the Disclosure of Company Information

¢ Requiring public companies and the larger (i.e., companies that do not
qualify for simplified reporting) private companies® and guarantee
companies? to prepare a more comprehensive directors’ report which
includes an analytical and forward-looking “business review", whilst
allowing private companies to opt out by special resolution. The
business review will provide useful information for shareholders.
In particular, the requirement to include information relating to
environmental and employee matters that have a significant effect
on the company is in line with international trends to promote
corporate social responsibility.
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Fostering Shareholder Protection
¢ Introducing more effective rules to deal with directors’ conflicts

of interests, including expanding the requirement for seeking
shareholders’ approval to cover directors’ employment contracts
which exceed three years.

Requiring disinterested shareholders’ approval in cases where
shareholders’ approval is required for transactions of public
companies and their subsidiaries.

Requiring the conduct of directors to be ratified by disinterested
shareholders’ approval to prevent conflicts of interest and possible
abuse of power by interested majority shareholders in ratifying the
unauthorised conduct of directors.

Replacing the “headcount test” with a not more than 10 per cent
disinterested voting requirement for privatisations and specified
schemes of arrangement, while giving the court a new discretion to
dispense with the test (in cases where it is retained) for members’
schemes.

Extending the scope of the unfair prejudice remedy to cover “proposed
acts and omissions”, so that a member may bring an action for unfair
prejudice even if the act or omission that would be prejudicial to the
interests of members is not yet effected.

Strengthening Auditors’ Rights
* Empouwering an auditor to require a wider range of persons, including

the officers of a company's Hong Kong subsidiary undertakings
and any person holding or accountable for the company or its
subsidiary undertakings' accounting records, to provide information
or explanation reasonably required for the performance of the
auditor's duties. The offence for failure to provide the information
or explanation is extended to cover officers of the company and the
wider range of persons.
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Measures for Ensuring Better Regulation

Ensuring the Accuracy of Information on the
Public Register

Clarifying the powers of the Registrar of Companies (the Registrar)
in relation to the registration of documents, such as specifying the
requirements for the authentication of documents to be delivered to
the Companies Registry (the Registry) and the manner of delivery,
and withholding the registration of unsatisfactory documents
pending further particulars.

Clarifying the Registrar’'s powers in relation to the keeping of the
register, such as rectifying typographical or clerical errors, making
annotations and requiring a company to resolve any inconsistency or
provide updated information.

Providing a statutory basis for applications to court for removing
information from the register that is inaccurate, forged or derived
from anything invalid, ineffective or done without the authority of
the company.

Requiring a company to deliver to the Registry a return, including
a statement of capital, whenever there is a change to its capital
structure, to ensure that the public register contains up-to-date
information on a company's share capital structure.

Improving the Registration of Charges

Revising the list of registrable charges, such as expressly providing
that a charge on an aircraft or any share in an aircraft is registrable,
and removing the requirement to register a charge for the purpose of
securing an issue of debentures.

Replacing the automatic acceleration of the repayment obligation
with a choice given to the lender as to whether the secured amount
is to become immediately payable when a charge is void due to non-
compliance with the registration requirements.
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¢ Requiring a certified copy of the charge instrument (in addition to the
prescribed particulars of the charge) to be registered and available
for public inspection, to provide more detailed information to those
who search the register.

o Shortening the period for delivery to the Registrar of the charge
instrument and the prescribed particulars from five weeks to one
month, to reduce the period during which the charge is not visible on
the register.

e Requiring written evidence of satisfaction/release of a charge to
accompany a notification to the Registrar for registration of the
satisfaction/release, thus making such documents available for public
inspection.

Refining the Scheme for Deregistration of Companies

* Imposing three additional conditions for the deregistration of defunct
companies, namely that the applicant must confirm that the company
is not a party to any legal proceedings and that neither the company
nor its subsidiary has any immovable property in Hong Kong, to
minimise any potential abuse of the deregistration procedure.

Improving the Enforcement Regime

e Enhancing the investigatory powers of an inspector, for example,
by requiring a person under investigation to preserve records or
documents and to verify statements made by statutory declaration.

e Providing better safeguards to ensure the confidentiality of
information obtained in investigations and enquiries and for the
better protection of informers.
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Providing new powers for the Registrar to obtain documents or
information to ascertain whether any conduct that would constitute
an offence in relation to the provision of fFalse or misleading
statement to the Registrar has taken place.

Strengthening the enforcement regime in relation to the liabilities
of officers of companies for the companies’ contravention of
provisions in the new Ordinance, including lowering the threshold
for prosecuting a breach or contravention and extending it to cover
reckless acts through a new definition of “responsible person”.

Introducing a new offence in relation to inaccurate auditor's
reports. The offence would be committed if the auditors in question
knowingly or recklessly caused two important statements to be
omitted from the auditor's report.

Empowering the Registrar to compound specified offences to
optimise the use of judicial resources. Compoundable offences are
generally confined to straightforward, minor regulatory offences
committed by companies that are punishable by a fine.
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Measures for Facilitating Business

Streamlining Procedures
¢ Allowing companies to dispense with Annual General Meetings by
unanimous shareholders' consent.

¢ Introducing an alternative court-free procedure for reducing capital
based on a solvency test.

¢ Allowing all types of companies (rather than just private companies,
as in the current Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32)) to purchase their
own shares out of capital, subject to a solvency test.

o Allowing all types of companies (whether listed or unlisted) to
provide financial assistance to another party for the purpose of
acquiring the company’s own shares or the shares of its holding
company, subject to a solvency test. Under the current Companies
Ordinance, subject to certain specified exceptions, there is a broad
prohibition on the giving of financial assistance to purchase the
company’s own shares.

¢ Introducing a new court-free statutory amalgamation procedure for
wholly owned intra-group companies.

o Streamlining the procedures for the restoration of dissolved
companies by court order.

e Introducing a new administrative restoration procedure for a
company dissolved by the Registrar in straightforward cases, without
the need for recourse to the court.
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Facilitating Simplified Reporting
o Facilitating SMEs to prepare simplified financial and directors’ reports
along the following lines:

- a private company (with the exception of a bank/deposit-
taking company, an insurance company or a stockbroker) will
automatically qualify for simplified reporting if it qualifies as a
“small private company”.

- the holding company of a group of companies that qualifies as a
“group of small private companies” will also qualify for simplified
reporting.

- a private company that is not a member of a corporate group may
adopt simplified reporting with the agreement of all the members.

¢ Allowing small guarantee companies and groups of small guarantee
companies, which have a total annual revenue of not more than $25
million, to qualify for simplified reporting.

e A private company or a group of private companies which is not
qualified as a “small private company” or a “group of small private
companies” respectively may prepare simplified reports if it meets
a higher size criteria and if the members holding 75 per cent of the
voting rights so resolve and no member objects.

¢ Making the summary financial reporting provisions more user-friendly
and extending their application to companies in general (rather than
confining them to listed companies, as in the current Companies
Ordinance).

Facilitating Business Operations
e Making the use of a common seal optional and relaxing the
requirements for a company to have an official seal for use abroad.

o Permitting a general meeting to be held at more than one location
using electronic technology.

o Setting out the rules governing communications to and by companies
in electronic form.
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Measures for Modernising The Law

Abolishing Par Value for Shares

¢ Adopting a mandatory system of no-par for all companies with a
share capital as par value is an antiquated concept that may give rise
to practical problems, such as inhibiting the raising of new capital
and unnecessarily complicating the accounting regime.

Removing the Power to Issue Share Warrants

e Removing the power of companies to issue share warrants to
bearers. Share warrants are rarely issued by companies nowadays
and are undesirable from the perspective of anti-money laundering
because of the lack of transparency in the recording of their
ownership and the manner by which they are transferred.

Better Protection of Personal Data

¢ Introducing new provisions for withholding directors’ residential
addresses and full identity card/passport numbers of individuals from
public inspection in order to foster the protection of personal data.

Clarifying the Rules on Indemnification of Directors

against Liabilities to Third Parties

o C(larifying the rules on the indemnification of directors against
liabilities to third parties in order to remove the uncertainties at
common law.

' 00000000020120701200000000000000000001000000000000000000
The Companies Bill was passed by the Legislative Council on 12 July, 2012. The new Companies Ordinance would come into operation after the enactment of over ten

subsidiary legislation.

¢ 00000000000 0000000000000000O0000D0000O(e)0000000000000O0(b)D000000000000(c)oO00O

010000

Under the new Ordinance, a private company is regarded as small if it satisfies any two of the following conditions: (a) total annual revenue of no more than HK$100
million; (b) total assets of no more than HK$100 million; and (c) no more than 100 employees.

B 000000000000 000000000DOORRS5000 000000000 OODOO
Under the new Ordinance, a gquarantee company is regarded as small if its total annual revenue does not exceed HK$25 million.
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Chairman
Mr Godfrey LAM Wan-ho, SC, JP

Members
Mr Stephen BIRKETT

Mrs Anne CARVER

Mr Rock CHEN Chung-nin, BBS, JP
Mr CHEW Fook-aun

Mr Vincent FAN Chor-wah
Professor GOO Say-hak
Mr Peter W GREENWOOD
Ms Roxanne ISMAIL

Mr Johnson KONG Chi-how
Mr Rainier LAM Hok-chung
Mrs Catherine MORLEY

Mr Kenneth NG Sing-yip
Ms Edith SHIH

Dr Kelvin WONG Tin-yau
Ms Benita YU Ka-po

= | 00 Annual Report 2011-12



= ‘ 0oooo Companies Registry

OO0F
Appendix F

ogod
00000000000000

oooooojP

0oooOoDoooo
oooooojP

cooooooooooobooo
ooooo

ooooooo
oooooojP

oooooooooooo
oooooo(@20moi120500)

ooooooooooon
OooooOojP (D20M0120200)

oooooon
000000(0201M0602900)

0000000
000000)JP(0201M0602800)

ooooo
ooooo

0g
00000

Ex-Officio Members
Mr Mark DICKENS, JP,
representing the Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited

Mr Stefan GANNON, JP,
representing the Hong Kong Monetary Authority

Mr Andrew YOUNG,
representing the Securities and Futures Commission

Ms Ada CHUNG, JP,
Registrar of Companies

Mr Darryl CHAN Wai-man,
representing the Secretary for Financial Services and the Treasury
(from 5 December 2011)

Mr John LEUNG Chi-yan, JP,
representing the Secretary for Financial Services and the Treasury
(prior to 2 December 2011)

Ms Teresa WONG Siu-wan,
Official Receiver (from 29 June 2011)

Mr E T O'CONNELL, JP,
Official Receiver (prior to 28 June 2011)

Professor Edward L G TYLER,
representing the Department of Justice

Secretary
Ms Phyllis MCKENNA
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The Companies Registry (the Registry) attaches great importance to
maintaining the highest ethical standards in the conduct of our business,
caring for the community, the environment and the well being of our
staff members. This Statement sets out the framework on how we
manage our corporate social responsibilities.

Maintain Highest Ethical Standards
We are committed to maintaining the highest ethical standards in

the conduct of our business. We have implemented an Integrity
Management Plan which sets out the administrative structure and
measures for promoting integrity management in the Registry. We have
established clear guidelines and procedures for disclosing interests and
avoiding conflicts of interest. We also draw up an Annual Action Plan
setting out the programme of work and implementation time frames on
a yearly basis to provide all staff members with a clear picture of the
Registry's commitment and efforts in integrity management.

Care for Staff Members

We care for and respect our staff members. We are committed to
enhancing the well being and the training and development of our staff
members, fostering a culture of continuous learning and life-long self
development and achieving a high standard of occupational safety and
health in the workplace.

Care for the Environment
We are committed to maintaining a high level of environmental

awareness among staff members and pursuing environmental protection
through adoption of environmentally friendly technologies, minimisation
of possible adverse impact on the environment and continuing to find
ways to enhance the Registry's environmental friendliness.

Care for the Community
We are committed to giving the community a quality service within

the scope of our businesses and available resources and enhancing
our contributions to the community as a whole. The Registry and its
members actively participate in social services, charitable activities and
educational initiatives in the community.
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Summary of the Companies Registry’s New Roles
and Functions, and Preparatory Work for These

» Enhancing Corporate Governance

Reviewing and revising the Guide to Directors’ Duties to highlight

the important new obligations of directors; and

Promulgating a Code of Corporate Governance that is applicable
to all companies incorporated in Hong Kong.

 Facilitating Business

Administering a new statutory procedure for the amalgamation
of wholly-owned companies within a single group, as an
alternative to court proceedings, as well as a new administrative
procedure to restore companies that have been struck off the
Register; and

Administering a new regime to withhold the usual residential
addresses of directors and secretaries, as well as the full Hong
Kong identification numbers of individuals.

» Enhancing the transparency of company information

Preparing guidelines in consultation with the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants to Ffacilitate compliance with the
new requirements for preparing a business review as part of
directors' reports;

Administering new statutory Ffiling requirements, including
statements of capital, notices of redenomination of share capital,
notices of conversion of stock into shares etc.; and

Administering an entirely new system for registering charges,
with the entire charge documents available for public inspection.



godooood
e 0000000O0O0O00D0OOOODO

OooOoooooOoooooOoooo
Ooooooooooooooooaon
OooOoooooooooooooon
oooooo

OoooooooOooooooooaon
Oo00oO0oO0OoooooOoOooooaon
Ooooooooooooooooaon
ooo

Oo00oOoO0ooooooOoOooooaon
Oo00oO0oo0oooooO0oooooon
ooo

gbodbododaoogodod

e JOOO

- Dooo0oooooooooooo
(oooonBO)YbooooooOo
oooooooooooooooo
ooooooooao

e JOOODODOOOOO

- Dooo0oooooooooooo
oooooooooooooooo
oooooo

- 0ooooooooooooooo
oooooooOooOooooooeonO
oooooooo

- 00ooo0o0oO0ooooOooooao
oooooooooooooooo
ooooooooao

 Ensuring better regulation

Exercising statutory requlatory powers to safeguard the
integrity of the Companies Register, including powers to rectify
typographical or clerical errors, make annotations and require
a company to resolve any inconsistency or provide updated
information;

Exercising new powers to compound specified offences and
obtain documents, records and information for the enforcement
of specified provisions under the new Companies Ordinance; and

Enforcing new filing requirements, in particular devising a new
system to enforce the requirement that companies must have
directors.

 Preparing for the implementation of the new

Companies Ordinance

Information systems

- Further enhancing the Integrated Companies Registry
Information System (ICRIS 1IB) to facilitate implementation of
the new Companies Ordinance, including the establishment of
databases that align with the new classifications of companies.

Policies, Forms and Operational Procedures

- Reviewing the new offences created by the Ordinance, as
well as the Registry's new functions and powers, which will
entail reviewing its policy concerning prosecutions and its
enforcement mechanisms;

- Reviewing all existing forms and designing new ones. It
is estimated that around 90 new or revised forms will be
introduced under the new Companies Ordinance; and

- Reviewing existing operational procedures in areas that will be
affected by the provisions of the new Companies Ordinance,
and formulating new operating procedures and internal
guidelines.
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Training and briefing Registry staff about the changes

- Preparing briefings, reference materials and guidelines for
Registry staff to acquaint them with the provisions of the new
Ordinance.

Organisational review
- Reviewing the organisational structure and resources needed
to carry out the Registry's new roles and functions.

Reviewing existing revenue items and determination of

new fees:

- New fees for applications to withhold residential addresses
and identification numbers from public inspections;

- New fees for compound offers for non-compliance with specific
provisions of the new Ordinance; and

- Escalating annual registration fees payable on delivery of
annual returns by companies limited by guarantee.

Publicity and Education

- Developing and implementing PR strategies to publicise the
requirements of the new Ordinance among stakeholders;

- Preparing briefing materials, guidelines, external circulars,
pamphlets and updates; and

- Collaborating with professional bodies to conduct briefings and
seminars concerning the provisions and requirements of the
new Ordinance.
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